
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 21 June 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Tuesday, 29 June 2021 at 10.30 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Bob Adams, Councillor David Bellamy, Councillor John Dawson, 
Councillor Phil Dilks, Councillor Philip Knowles, Councillor Charmaine Morgan and 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
 

 

Agenda 
 

1.   Comments from members of the public 
To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s discretion. 
 

 

2.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.   Disclosure of interests 
 

 

4.   Action notes of the meeting held on 23 February 2021 
 

(Pages 3 - 14) 

5.   Updates from previous meeting 
To consider updates on actions agreed at the previous meeting.  
 

(Pages 15 - 19) 

6.   Outturn Position Report 2020/21 
This report provides Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the detail of the 
Council’s provisional outturn position for the financial year 2020/21.  

 

(Pages 21 - 61) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
7.   Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2022/23 

This report reviews the Council’s Local Council Tax Support scheme in 
advance of the 2022/23 financial year and seeks comments from this 
Committee regarding potential changes to the scheme for public 
consultation. 
 

(Pages 63 - 77) 

8.   Progress on the new Complaints System 
The Monitoring Officer to provide Members with a verbal update on the current 
progress and work undertaken on the new Complaints System.  
 

 

9.   Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2020/21 
This report outlines South Kesteven District Councils performance against 
the Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2020/21. 
 

(Pages 79 - 95) 

10.   Work Programme 2021 - 2022 
To consider the contents of the Committee Work Programme for 2021 – 
2022 
 

(Pages 97 - 100) 

11.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstance decides 
is urgent 
 

 



 
 

Meeting of the 
Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Tuesday, 23 February 2021, 10.30 am 

 

 

Meeting held virtually, via Skype 
 

 

Committee Members present 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor David Bellamy 
Councillor John Dawson 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Charmaine Morgan 
Councillor Ian Stokes 

Cabinet Members 
Councillor Adam Stokes – Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Barry Dobson – Cabinet Member for Growth and Leisure  
Councillor Robert Reid – Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 

Officers  
The Chief Executive (Karen Bradford) 
Interim Director for Finance (Richard Wyles) 
Director of Law and Governance (Shahin Ismail) 
Director for Commercial and Operations (Gary Smith) 
Assistant Chief Executive, Housing Delivery (Ken Lyon) 
Performance Lead Officer (Ben Russell) 
Democratic Officer (Naomi Page) 
Civic and Member Services Officer (Anita Eckersley) 

 

28. Comments from members of the public 
 

No comments from members of the public had been received. 
 

29. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Bob Adams. 
 

It was noted that Councillor Ashley Baxter would be substituting for Councillor 
Philip Knowles who had sent apologies. 
 

A register of attendance was taken, and it was confirmed that seven 
Committee Members were present. 

3

Agenda Item 4



 
 

30. Disclosure of interests 
 
No interests were disclosed. 
 

31. Action notes of the meeting held on 10 November 2020 
 
It was noted that Councillor Ian Stokes had attended the meeting held on 10 
November 2020. 
 
ACTION POINT 1 
Amend the attendance list to show that Councillor Ian Stokes was in 
attendance on 10 November 2020. 
 
Subject to the amendment to include Councillor Ian Stokes’s attendance, the 
action notes from the meeting held on 10 November 2020 were agreed as a 
correct record. 
 

32. Updates from previous meeting 
 
The Chairman referred to Item 19 on the Action Sheet regarding a charge over 
the investments and assets in the Council’s companies and noted that 
although the progress was marked as completed, it was ongoing.  Clarification 
on the current position was sought from the Monitoring Officer.   
 
The Monitoring Officer referred to a previous meeting where the Chairman had 
queried what protection was in place for the Council’s investments and assets 
in the Council’s companies.  External legal advice had been taken and work 
was in hand to establish what assets and loans were in the Council’s 
Companies and whether it was proportionate to apply a charge to those 
assets. Further information would be provided in a report at the next meeting 
of this Committee. 
 
ACTION POINT 2 
That a report on the outcomes of the work undertaken regarding the protection 
of the Council’s assets and investments in the Council’s Companies would be 
presented to the next meeting of this Committee. 
 
Item 23 – A Rent Guarantee Scheme. It was suggested that this item be 
brought to the mid-year Committee. 
 
ACTION POINT 3 
That further consideration is given to the Council’s role in respect of the Rent 
Guarantee Scheme at the mid-year Committee. 
 
Item 24 – Invest to Save, it was noted that the interpretation of the action was 
slightly different from what had been proposed by the Chairman and Vice 
Chairman in so far as, a report that defined how the Invest to Save should 
report back to Committee would be presented to the mid-year Committee. 

4



 
 

 

ACTION POINT 4 
That the Committee receives a report defining how the Invest to Save should 
report to Committee at the mid-year meeting. 
 

Item 25 – The impact of Brexit which had been assigned to the Chairman and 
Vice-Chairman.  It was felt that it was too early to understand the impact of 
Brexit especially as it had been complicated by the impact of COVID-19 and 
would be impossible to separate the issues at this time.  It was therefore, 
suggested, that this should be considered nearer the end of the year or early 
next year along with a report that provided some understanding of the impact 
of COVID-19. 
 

ACTION POINT 5 
That the Committee receives a report on the impact of Brexit together with a 
separate report on the impact of COVID-19 at the end of the year or the 
beginning of 2022. 
 

In response to a Member’s query about Item 21 of the action notes regarding 
the recommendation to Council to abolish the Deepings Special Expense 
Area, the Interim Director of Finance confirmed that this was part of the Budget 
Proposals that would go before Council on 1 March 2021. 
 
Councillor Morgan joined the meeting at 10.40. 
 
Item 23 – The breakdown of grant payments in wards, clarification was sought 
on whether it was possible to have information for the areas.  The Interim 
Director of Finance confirmed that it would not be possible by ward postcode 
due to the way the information was retained.  He noted that Government had 
requested that information on provision of grants was available by MP 
Constituency area. He also noted that the information could potentially be 
provided geographically by town or village. 
 

ACTION POINT 6 
That the District Councillors for the Deepings area are provided with a 
breakdown of grant payments made in the villages and towns in their area. 
 

33. Quarter 3 Financials 
 
The Interim Director of Finance introduced the report of the Cabinet Member 
for Finance and Resources that provided an update on the Council’s 2020/21 
financial forecast position as at the end of December 2020. The Committee 
would receive the outturn report for the final quarter at a future meeting of the 
Committee.  
 
The Committee was informed that the forecast showed a projected deficit of 
£300k as at, 31 March 2021. Reference was made to the impact on income 
levels due to the pandemic and Members were advised that the compensation 
schemes and reimbursements from the Government did not wholly meet the 
income losses from areas such as car parking and art venues.  

5



 
 

 
Work was being undertaken to try to achieve a balanced position by the end of 
the financial year but due to the volatility of the current situation an element of 
caution on achieving this was given.  Members were reminded that should the 
final position be a deficit then the Stabilisation Reserve would be used to 
ensure a balanced position at the end of the financial year. 
 
A summary of the report was given to Members and the following points were 
highlighted for noting: 
 

• There had been no significant changes since the last report. 

• The additional £116k of Disabled Facility Grant funding secured by the 
Council did not need to be reimbursed to Government at the end of the 
financial year.  Any funds not fully utilised prior to year-end would be 
transferred to a reserve funding allocation. 

• Business Grants totalling £38.5m had been awarded by the Council to 
eligible local businesses in accordance with the various Government’s 
business support schemes.  

• The Council would continue to play a supporting role as further grant 
tranches became available to cover the continuation of lockdown up to 
14 April 2021 when it was expected that non-essential businesses 
would re-open. 

• In July 2020 Council had approved funding of up to £750k to support 
and fund payments for One Life, the leisure provider, during the closure 
period to the end of December 2020. The final payments were still to be 
ratified but were estimated to be around £100k less than predicted. 

• The HRA new build programme showed that the anticipated spend was 
now just over £3m rather than the anticipated £27.4m forecast in the 
original 2020/21 budget. The underlying reasons for the pause in the 
programme would be identified but the focus would now be on the new 
financial year.  Members would receive details of the new build 
programme for the new financial year in due course.   

 

Members sought clarification on: 
 

The Review of the safety and property inspections, how had costs and 
resources been identified, had a detailed analysis on the amount of work 
outstanding been done and how much had been allocated to the task. 
 

The Interim Director for Finance noted that the housing service challenges 
were highlighted during the budget setting period.  Members would be asked 
to consider at Council next week additional funding that would ensure the 
Compliance Action Plan could be delivered within the agreed timelines. 
Assurance was given that the financial implications had been built into the 
budgets.   

 
A Member queried profiling of expenditure forecasts between quarterly 
reporting. There had been a question regarding the profiling of capital costs as 
these had been previously allocated to period 12 each financial year. When 

6



 
 

the actuals had been compared to the profiles, there had been a mismatch 
between actual costs incurred to date and the profiled budget.  This had now 
been corrected to provide Members with more comparative information. 

 
A Member commented that the pandemic might be used as a reason for 
inaction and queried why only around £3m of the predicted £27m had been 
spent on housing. The Chief Executive noted that the improvement plan, the 
Regulatory Notice, and details of the actions taken had been shared with all 
Members. She assured Members that there had been openness and 
transparency. Timely actions had been taken to allocate the right resources 
and ensure that the initial processes were in place to comply with the 
Compliance Action Plan.  

 
The Chairman referred to Table 1 regarding the Cash flow forecast and sought 
assurance that the cash flow was being managed and what actions had been 
taken to keep the cash balances at appropriate levels. 

 
To comply with good practice, creditors were paid within 30 days.  Members 
were informed that it was not unusual for the Council to experience a reduction 
of income levels during January, February, and March due to the nature of 
income.  To offset these cash flow movements, funds from the Council’s 
Money Market, banks and building society investments would be transferred to 
the cash accounts to ensure there was a positive position for the day to day 
running of Council business. 

   
The Chairman thanked the Finance Team for the level of detail contained 
within the report, and the contents were noted. 
 

34. Quarter 3 Performance 
 
The Monitoring Officer noted that the report contained the 6 performance 
dashboards that the Committee had worked on and developed. The 
dashboards were now available on the SKDC Website via the performance 
reporting link.   
 

The Chairman had met with the Monitoring Officer and the Performance Lead 
Officer and discussed the longer-term future of performance measures and the 
new Corporate Plan.  There was an exercise to bring the performance 
measures in line with the Corporate Plan.  The Chairman suggested that a 
workshop should be arranged to review the performance measures, identify 
how these could be aligned with the Corporate plan and look at how the big-
ticket items could be included in performance reporting.  It was suggested that 
the workshop take place over the coming Summer when it was hoped that 
restrictions would have been sufficiently eased by then.  Members were asked 
to let the Chairman and Vice-Chairman know whether they would be interested 
in taking part in the workshop. 
 
 

7



 
 

ACTION POINT 7 
a) A workshop to be arranged during the Summer to review the 

performance measures, identify how these could be aligned to the 
Corporate plan, look at how the big-ticket items could be included in the 
performance reporting, gather an understanding of what was being taken 
from the performance dashboards and whether there were areas that 
required more focus.  

b) Members to let the Chairman and Vice-Chairman know whether they 
would like to take part in the workshop. 

 
The Chairman referred to Appendix 6 – Complaints in the report and sought 
clarification on the Complaint process. The Monitoring Officer explained there 
was currently a three-stage complaint process, but a two-stage process was 
being considered.  The complaint process together with the timelines could be 
accessed through the SKDC website.  If the complaint was not satisfied it 
moved to two levels of review all the way up to Director level.  A member of 
the public could also take a complaint to the Ombudsman but there were few 
of these as most of the complaints were dealt with satisfactorily.   
 

Members were informed that due to the current way complaints were collated, 
the statistics presented were misleading.  Reference was made to Street 
Scene and how most of the “complaints” were requests for service, such as 
requesting a bin collection that may have been missed.  These were normally 
dealt with very quickly and work was being done to disaggregate the reports 
as the current format provided a distorted picture.   
 

ACTION POINT 8 
The Chairman asked the Monitoring Officer to arrange for the details of the 76 
Street Scene complaints to be forwarded to Committee Members. 
 

A Member referred to the previous Quarter 3 report on complaints when the 
Committee had been advised that a new complaints system was being 
developed and queried what progress had been made in developing this new 
system. 
 
The Monitoring Officer noted that progress had been made and work was 
ongoing with the Customer Services Team.  IT input would be required to help 
in disaggregating complaints information and collecting it in a more appropriate 
manner. It was also noted that the aim was to report at every stage which 
would provide more accurate information for Members to consider and ensure 
that service improvements could be achieved. 
 

ACTION POINT 9 
That the Committee receives a report on the progress of the work undertaken 
on a new complaints system at the next meeting. 
 
The Vice Chairman referred to the fluctuation of rent performance and 
acknowledged that the downturn at the beginning of the year was due to 
COVID.  He queried whether there was still a degree of understanding for 

8



 
 

tenants experiencing financial difficulties and how this had impacted on the 
projections for the year. He also queried whether the Council Tax collections 
and non-domestic waste collection performances were below the collection 
rate targets due to the impact of COVID, how this had impacted on the 
Council’s cashflow and what was being done to counteract any impact. 
 

Members were informed there had been multiple dimensions over the last year 
which had created a volatile arrears position.  The whole of the recovery 
process had been suspended for six months with no recovery action being 
taken until September 2020.  This had been a local decision in line with other 
authorities, Courts had also been suspended and Government had intervened 
nationally by preventing evictions. Weekly generated finance reports identified 
areas where a more supportive approach could be taken through direct 
intervention conversations with tenants and businesses about what support 
and arrangements could put in place. 
 

The converse had been an acceleration of discretionary housing payment 
allowances which had been fast tracked to tenants. The Government had also 
intervened with nearly £1m hardship fund.  Eligible residents had £150 
reduction in Council Tax bills for one year only. Where it had been possible to 
offset arrears, this had created a positive impact on the arrears position but 
there was no enforcement underpinning arrangements with those tenants who 
could not pay. 
 

Reference was then made to the business rates and the target backdrop being 
incorrect due to the Government Relief given at the start of the period.  This 
had wiped off £25m of debt by giving those business sectors specific relief.  
That had impacted on the collectable debit of £45m being reduced to £20m 
which meant that the profile was not in line with the remaining residual debt.  
 

In context, Council Tax was behind by around £756K up to the end of Quarter 
3 which meant that the Council Specific portion was down by around 10% 
equating to around £75K.  In terms of the Business Rates, these were around 
£698K behind target.  Projected targets for the year would probably not be 
reached and it was anticipated that the fluctuations would continue into the 
new year.   
 
A Member referred to Appendix 4 regarding planning application decisions and 
noted they had to be determined within a specific timescale but there was no 
mention of a planning determination date in the report.  He felt it should be 
mentioned as there could be implications should an application go to appeal.  
 

A Member queried where the complaint figure of 7 for Environmental Health, 
Licensing and Neighbourhoods had come from, how these were picked up and 
whether they referred just to the Council or to private landlords as well. The 
Monitoring Officer confirmed that the figures related solely to the Council.  
 

A Member raised concerns about the number of affordable houses that had 
been built in Grantham noting that only 3 out of 181 houses had been 
delivered.  The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning noted that he 

9



 
 

shared the concerns around the affordable housing and suggested that a 
report on the issue of affordable housing be brought to both this Committee 
and Planning Committee. 
 

ACTION POINT 10 
That the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning brings a report to this 
Committee on the issue of the delivery of affordable housing in the District. 
 

The Chief Executive noted that it was disappointing that the affordable housing 
targets were not being met and that not all private developers brought 
affordable housing forward on their developments.  She referred to the number 
of permissions being granted and the developments that were in the pipeline 
and commented on the Barrowby Development that contained plans for 
affordable housing.  She also noted that the Council could not control how 
developers delivered the 30% target of affordable housing on their sites. 
 

Reference was also made to the regular requests from the Cabinet Member 
for Housing and Planning, for updates on the capital programme and 
explained that the focus for the last few months had been on compliance and 
not the capital programme.  She assured Members that schemes were being 
prioritised and that a housing report would be going before Cabinet next week.   
 

The Chairman welcomed all the valid comments and thanked everyone for 
their input and the Performance Report was noted. 
 

35. Corporate Plan 2020-23 - Key Performance Indicators and Targets 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive introduced the report and explained that it 
focussed on the performance indicators attached to the Council’s Corporate 
Plan 2020-23, as adopted by Council on 1 October 2020 that were in the remit 
of this Committee.  The Plan set out the vision for South Kesteven to: “Be the 
best district in which to live, work and visit” and contained five priority areas: 
 

1 Growth and our Economy 
2 Housing that meets the needs of All Residents 
3 Health and Strong Communities 
4 A Clean and Sustainable Environment 
5 A High Performing Council 

 

Under the five priority areas were 54 actions that the Council was planning to 
deliver over the period to 2023.  The delivery of each priority would be 
supported by several actions.  Targets and performance indicators would need 
to be set to determine whether delivery was on track, whether the action was 
likely to be achieved and if not how to address it.  Key performance indicators 
(KPIs) and targets had been developed with each of the relevant overview and 
scrutiny committee.  Once approved, each Committee would receive a 
quarterly performance report.   
 

The performance indicators for the scope of this Committee would cover 4 of 
the 5 priority areas in the Plan and largely be focussed on economic growth, 

10



 
 

employment and regeneration, capital projects and corporate services as part 
of a, high performing Council.   Any proposed changes to key performance 
indicators would be brought back to Committee.   
 

Members raised the following points: 
 

• What evidence was there that this reflected what the people of South 
Kesteven wanted or was it evidenced from Councillor demand.  

• Members acknowledged that public engagement had been difficult this 
year but expressed concern that there did not appear to be much input 
from the public.  
 

The Assistant Chief Executive referred to the information gathered at the 
workshops that Members had attended and how an evidence-based approach 
had been undertaken to develop the priorities and actions within the Corporate 
Plan. A range of data sources had been utilised to undertake an assessment 
of performance and benchmarking to form an analysis of strengths, 
weaknesses, opportunities, and threats (SWOT) for the District.  The SWOT 
was then analysed and used to inform three key areas of the Corporate Plan: 
 

•  Vision – an encompassing statement setting out succinctly the high-level 

aim for the District 
• Priorities – specific key areas of focus for the Council 
•  Actions – the things that will, in combination seek to achieve the targets of 

the Council  
 

The Chairman requested that the Committee Members receive copies of the 
KPIs for all the other Overview and Scrutiny Committees as well as the SWOT 
analysis.  He commented that the Committee wanted to ensure that the 
Council was not talking to itself and that the proposed targets were what 
people wanted and not was thought to be a good idea.    
 

ACTION POINT 11 
That the Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats (SWOT) data be 
shared with the Committee Members together with the Key Performance 
Indicators for the other Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 
 

In response to queries about the Corporate Plan’s journey, how it would be 
reviewed, and consultation of any changes to the Corporate Plan, Members 
were informed that the Corporate Plan had been developed by assessing 
evidence, with Member and officer input and had been approved at Cabinet 
and Full Council in 2020.  However, the Corporate Plan was a living document 
that could change should circumstances require it and any changes would be 
approved via Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Cabinet.   
 

A vote by exception was taken, For: (7) and Abstain: (1).  The following 
recommendations were agreed subject to the Committees and Members being 
involved and consulted at the draft stage of the process of any changes.   
  

11



 
 

1 The proposed key performance indicators and targets associated 
with the actions in the South Kesteven District Council Corporate 
Plan 2020-23 are recommend to Cabinet. 
 

2 That the Committee notes the key performance indicators and 
success criteria for each action will be reviewed and if necessary 
revised as part of the annual review process. 

 
36. Future High Street Fund Bid 

 
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Growth and Leisure introduced 
the update on the Future High Street Fund Bid. He reminded Members that 
Grantham’s Further Clarification Stage funding request was £8.01m and had 
been submitted to MHCLG in October 2020.  On 26 December 2020, 
Grantham was offered an in-principle funding envelope of up to £5.55m. This 
was 69% of the original funding request.   
 

The Consultants had been asked to look at what could be done to maximise 
the benefits to cost ratio (BCR) and had come up with four proposals that were 
outlined on pages 79 and 80 of the report.  The benefits to cost ratio (BCR) 
that would be accepted by the MHCLG was Option 1.  To make the necessary 
final savings, this would mean the removal of the St Peters Hill Gardens Public 
Realm and highway improvements and a reduction in the number of 
conversions of vacant upper floor units to residential from 25 to 22.  The 
updated scheme would need to be submitted by 26 February 2021. The 
Committee was being asked support the preferred option (identified as ‘option 
1’) as the final proposed scheme for the Future High Street Fund in principle 
offer of £5,558,818. 
 

Members were in support of the proposal and raised the following comments 
and observations: 

• It made sense to concentrate on the station approach as it was the 
initial view of Grantham for visitors leaving the railway station. 

• Whether the schemes not now covered in this bid would be financed 
from other sources – it was noted that the aim was for them to picked 
up in due course. 

• Whether volunteers could be asked to support the St Peter’s Hill 
Garden Project – It was noted this was a possibility. 

• What consultation had been undertaken with Grantham residents – It 
was noted that a survey had been undertaken and consultation with 
Grantham Councillors had also taken place.  

• What strategy would be in place around the detail of development and 
would it include the inclusion of the history of Grantham.  

• What would happen with the listed buildings in this area – it was noted 
that the four listed cottages would remain. 
 

12



 
 

ACTION POINT 12 
That the Consultation in respect of the Future High Street Fund Bid be brought 
back to Committee for further consideration. 
 

In response to a Member’s query about consultation with Grantham  
Councillors following the MHCLG response, the Cabinet Member for Growth 
and Leisure confirmed that consultation had taken place with Grantham 
Councillors at the beginning of the year and  there had been meetings with the 
consultants to go through the proposed projects.  The MHCLG  had given the 
Council £5000 to amend the previously submitted scheme, so it met the 
benefits to cost ratio (BCR).  This now had to be submitted by 26 February 
2021 to ensure the Council received the £5.55m.  
 

The Chairman thanked Members for their input and noted that the Committee 
would like to see more detail when it was available.  The Cabinet Member for 
Growth and Leisure assured Members that as soon as the funding was in 
place, Members would be asked for further input. 
 

ACTION POINT 13 
That the Committee receives the details of the proposals for development 
when this is available. 
 

The Chairman confirmed that the update was noted and reiterated that the 
Committee would welcome sight of further details once these were available. 
 

37. Grantham Town Centre Review 
 
The Chairman referred to the economic development aspect of the Committee 
and how there had been a longstanding item on the workplan in respect of an 
assessment and research of Grantham Town Centre.  It was recognised that 
Grantham Town Centre required reconsideration and thought, and reference 
was made to several previous reports and bids that had been developed over 
the last 10 years.  The aim was to think laterally and to broaden the scope of 
where and who to gather evidence from when considering the medium-term 
future of Grantham Town Centre.  
 

The Chairman and Vice Chairman proposed that over the next year this would 
be a standing item on the agenda.  This would be an opportunity to consider  
communicating with slightly different groups of people to gather evidence and 
views on how to improve Grantham Town Centre. The work would not overlap 
the High Street Funding bid but would enable the Committee at the end of the 
year to help identify what the local community wanted for the future of 
Grantham Town Centre. 
 

ACTION POINT 14  
That the Grantham Town Centre Review is a standing item on future agendas 
for this Committee. 
 
 
 

13



 
 

Members welcomed the initiative and discussed the following ideas: 
 

• Include groups that were not necessarily promoting business such as 
Community Groups, Local Resident Associations, Pedestrian Groups, 
Civic Societies, Cycle Groups, Heritage Groups, Disabled Groups. 
 

• Contact sustainable transport organisations and wider groups from the 
outskirts of Grantham including the rural areas to ascertain how easy or 
difficult it was to get into Grantham. 

 

• Whether it would be feasible to pedestrianise part of the High Street. 
 

• Work on the Southern Quadrant Relief Road had resulted in Roman 
Foundations and around 4000 artefacts being found which were now in 
Lincoln. This was part of Grantham’s history. 

 

• That due to infrastructural issues whether a representative from 
Lincolnshire County Council should be invited.  It was noted that this had 
been considered along with an input from Lincolnshire LEP. 

 

The Chairman welcomed the comments made by Members.  He referred to 
the limited time available to the Committee due to the number of meetings in 
the municipal year.  The initial stage would be to gather suggestions first,  
these could then be organised into groups which would enable the Committee 
to use its’ time gathering evidence effectively and therefore, give a broader 
voice to the people of the town.  He requested that Members email both the 
Chairman and the Vice Chairman with their ideas, thoughts, and comments.   
 

ACTION POINT 15 
That Members provide the Chairman and the Vice Chairman with their ideas 
on who to contact outside the usual business contacts and that these will then 
be prioritised into groups. 
 

38. Work programme 
 
There were no comments from Members on the Work Programme.  The 
Chairman and the Vice Chairman would arrange a date for the Performance 
Matrix Workshop. 
 

ACTION POINT 16 
That the Chairman and Vice Chairman to arrange a date for the Performance 
Matrix Workshop. 
 

39. Close of Meeting 
 
The meeting closed at 12:56. 
 
 

14



 
 

ACTION SHEET 
Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the meeting held on 23 February 2021.  

in 
No 

Agenda 
Item 

Action Assigned to Comment/Status Deadline 

31 Action notes 
of the 
meeting held 
on 10 
November 
2020 

Amend the attendance list to 
show that Councillor Ian Stokes 
was in attendance on 10 
November 2020 

Democratic Services Councillor Ian Stokes’ 
attendance has been added 
to the minutes of 10 
November 2020. 

COMPLETE 

32 Updates 
from 
previous 
meeting 

1. That a report on the outcomes 
of the work undertaken 
regarding the protection of the 
Council’s assets and 
investments in the Council’s 
Companies would be 
presented to the next meeting 
of this Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Shahin Ismail 
(Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Council owned assets in 
the companies are as follows: 
LeisureSK Ltd: 
Equipment          £88,891 
IT Equipment     £13,354 
Total                   £102,245 
Environment SK Limited: 
Loan of £571k on repayment 
terms with interest, to 2027 
InvestSK Ltd: 
Nil 
Gravitas: 
A loan to Gravitas, for the 
building of homes. The loan 
to be repaid upon sale of the 
houses. 
 

COMPLETE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15

A
genda Item

 5



 
 

in 
No 

Agenda 
Item 

Action Assigned to Comment/Status Deadline 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2. That further consideration is 
given to the Council’s role in 
respect of the Rent Guarantee 
Scheme at the mid-year 
Committee. 

3. That the Committee receives a 
report defining how the Invest 
to Save should report to 
Committee at the mid-year 
meeting. 

4. That the Committee receives a 
report on the impact of Brexit 
together with a separate report 
on the impact of COVID-19 at 
the end of the year or the 
beginning of 2022. 

5. That the District Councillors 
for the Deepings area are 
provided with a breakdown of 
grant payments made in the 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Democratic Services 
 
 
 
 
 

Democratic Services 
 
 
 
 

 

Democratic Services 

If the Companies Committee 
wishes to proceed with 
obtaining legal advice as to 
the protection of these assets, 
that work can now be 
commissioned. 

 
Added to the Committees 
Work Programme for 
consideration at its mid 
Municipal Year meeting.  
 
 

Added to the Committees 
Work Programme for 
consideration at its mid 
Municipal Year meeting.  
 
 

Added to the Committees 
Work Programme for 
consideration early 2022.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMPLETE 
 
 
 
 
 

COMPLETE 
 
 
 
 
 

COMPLETE 

16



 
 

in 
No 

Agenda 
Item 

Action Assigned to Comment/Status Deadline 

villages and towns in their 
area. 

34 Quarter 3 
Performance 

1. A workshop to be arranged 
during the Summer to review 
the performance measures, 
identify how these could be 
aligned to the Corporate Plan, 
look at how the big-ticket 
items could be included in the 
performance reporting, gather 
an understanding of what was 
being taken from the 
performance dashboards and 
whether there were areas that 
required more focus.  

2. Members to let the Chairman 
and Vice-Chairman know 
whether they would like to 
take part in the workshop. 
 

3. The Chairman asked the 
Monitoring Officer to arrange 
for the details of the 76 Street 
Scene complaints to be 
forwarded to Committee 
Members. 

 

 

 
Ben Russell 
(Performance Lead) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All Committee Members 
 

 
 
Shahin Ismail 
(Monitoring Officer) 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Two potential dates have 
been identified: 26 or 27 July 
2021.  Members to consider 
and choose the most 
appropriate.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Members to advise 
 
 
 
 
 

The number of complaints 
recorded was 257, not 76. 
The Strategic Director 
Commercial and Operations 
to be in attendance at the 
next meeting to answer 
questions. 

 
 

 
29 June 
2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

17



 
 

in 
No 

Agenda 
Item 

Action Assigned to Comment/Status Deadline 
 

4. That the Committee receives a 
report on the progress of the 
work undertaken on a new 
complaints system at the next 
meeting 

 

5. That the Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning brings a 
report to this Committee on 
the issue of the delivery of 
affordable housing in the 
District. 

 

Shahin Ismail 
(Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Nick Robins 
(Cabinet Member 
Planning and Planning 
Policy) 

 

The Monitoring Officer will 
attend to give a verbal report. 
– Added to the Work 
Programme and Agenda for 
29 June 2021. 
 
 

Due to Cabinet remits 
changing this item has be re-
allocated to the Cabinet. 
Member for Planning and 
Planning Policy 

29 June 
2021 
 
 
 
 
 

A meeting 
date to be 
confirmed 

35 35. Corporate 
Plan 2020-
23 - Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
and Targets 

That the Strengths, Weaknesses, 
Opportunities, and Threats 
(SWOT) data be shared with the 
Committee Members together 
with the Key Performance 
Indicators for the other Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees. 

Ken Lyon (Assistant 
Chief Executive) 

Circulated to Members 15 
June 2021 

COMPLETE 

36 Future High 
Street Fund 
Bid 

1. That the Consultation in 
respect of the Future High 
Street Fund Bid be brought 
back to Committee for further 
consideration. 
 

2. That the Committee receives 
the details of the proposals for 
development when this is 
available 

Councillor Barry Dobson 
(Deputy Leader of the 
Council and Portfolio 
Holder for Leisure) 
 
 

Councillor Barry Dobson 
(Deputy Leader of the 
Council and Portfolio 
Holder for Leisure) 

Notification has been 
received that the fund is 
available and that further 
work is being undertaken. 
 
 

To be provided to the 
Committee once available. 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 

18



 
 

in 
No 

Agenda 
Item 

Action Assigned to Comment/Status Deadline 

37 37. Grantham 
Town Centre 
Review 
 

1. That the Grantham Town 
Centre Review is a standing 
item on future agendas for this 
Committee 

 
2. That Members provide the 

Chairman and the Vice 
Chairman with their ideas on 
who to contact outside the 
usual business contacts and 
that these will then be 
prioritised into groups. 

Democratic Services 
 
 
 
 
All Members and the 
Chairman of the 
Committee 

Added to the Work 
Programme  
 
 
 
Ongoing – Members and the 
Chairman to feedback and 
agree at the next meeting. 

COMPLETE 
 
 
 
 
29 June 
2021 

38 38. Work 
Programme 

That the Chairman and Vice 
Chairman to arrange a date for 
the Performance Matrix 
Workshop. 

 

Chairman and Vice-
Chairman of the 
Committee 

The Chairman and Vice-
Chairman to provide an 
update.  

Ongoing 

 

19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report Author 

Claire Morgan, Senior Accountant 

 
01476 406051 

 claire.morgan@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 16 June 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 17 June 2021  

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

17 June 2021  

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is asked to: 

1. Review the provisional Revenue and Capital Outturn report and associated 
appendices for the financial year 2020/21. 

2. Review and recommend to Governance and Audit Committee the budget carry 
forwards (appendices D and H) and reserve movements (sections 4 and 7). 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

29 June 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

 Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

 

9 June 2021 

Outturn Position Report 2020/21 

This report provides Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee with the detail of the Council’s provisional outturn position for the financial 
year 2020/21. The report covers the following areas: 
 

- General Fund Revenue Budget 

- Housing Revenue Account Budget 

- Capital Programmes – General Fund and HRA  

21

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report 

1.1   This report provides the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the detail of the Council’s provisional outturn 

position for the financial year 2020/21. 

1.2   From a financial perspective, 2020/21 has been the most turbulent year for many years 

and one that has proved extremely challenging from both a member and officer 

perspective.  Almost immediately after the budget was approved by Council on 2 March 

2020, the country went into lockdown and subsequently the budget framework was 

facing a high degree of volatility and uncertainty that continued throughout the 

remainder of the financial year and into 2021/22.   

1.3 The Council responded in many ways including the formation of COVID-19 financial 

impact reports that tracked and monitored the situation throughout the year including 

updated narrative on the levels of Government support, the impact on the income of the 

Council, the impact on Business Rate and Council Tax collection and the necessary 

unforeseen expenditure that was being incurred. 

1.4 This work culminated in an amended budget being presented and approved by Council 

on 17 September 2020 which set out the budget allocations that required re-basing and 

showed in detail the full extent of the potential deficit the Council was potentially 

exposed to based on a range of scenarios and in the absence of mitigating actions 

being implemented.  The report also confirmed that the Council’s Budget stabilisation 

reserve may need to be utilised to meet any deficit that arises; this reserve was further 

bolstered by specific allocations to it as part of the Budget framework proposals for 

2021/22 that were approved by Council on 1 March 2021. 

1.5 This report attempts to capture all of the volatility that is referred to above in a manner 

that enables members to better understand the changes that have occurred, the nature 

and level of grants that have been allocated directly to the Council to support its 

financial stability and details of the grants that were administered by the Council for its 

residents and businesses throughout the year.  For clarity, the variance and 

explanatory information are based on the comparison between the amended budget 

and the outturn rather than the original budget that was set in March 2020.   

1.6 In keeping with the Committee’s preference to focus on the more significant variances, 

a financial threshold of £20k has been followed in order to focus on those variances 

that are material.  An overview of the provisional outturn is presented in the main report 

and there a number of supporting appendices that provide greater detail in respect of: 

- General Fund (GF) – Revenue, Capital and reserves 

- Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – Revenue, Capital and reserves  

1.7 In order to comply with International Financial Reporting Standards, a number of 

technical accounting entries are required to be made which can create significant 

variances. These entries are removed at table 4 to provide a more meaningful 

comparison.  The report ensures that, through explanation and presentation, the final 

account figures can be reconciled back to the budget set by the Council.  Table 1 

shows the overall summary outturn. 

 

 

 

22



Table 1 – 2020/21 Overall Provisional Summary 

Heading 2020/21 Amended  
Budget (not including 
proposed budget C/F  

£m 

2020/21  

Provisional 
Outturn 

 £m 

Commentary 

General Fund 
Revenue 
Account  

26.015 24.172 Details shown at 
section 2 and 
appendices A & B  

General Fund 
Capital 

3.638 2.230 Details shown at 
section 3 and appendix 
C 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

(4.593) (6.290) Details shown at 
section 5 and appendix 
F  

HRA Capital 17.616 3.167 Details shown at 
section 6 and appendix 
G  

 

Salary Vacancy Factor 

1.8 The Council has a budgeted salary vacancy factor calculated at 3.0% of salary budgets 
to offset against in year vacant posts. The annual budgets are (£428k) for General 
Fund and (£136k) for HRA and these have been achieved in 2020/21. 
Carry Forwards 

1.9 Due to timing differences in grants and budgets being approved, it is proposed to carry 
specific budgets forward into 2021/22 to fund specific and previously approved projects 
and the Committee is asked to review and approve these. The details are shown at 
Appendix D (General Fund) and Appendix H (HRA). 

1.10 Commentary and review of reserves are detailed at sections 4 (General Fund) and 7 
(HRA). Reserves statements are shown at Appendix E (General Fund) and Appendix I 
(HRA). 

2 Revenue Budget 2020/21 – General Fund  

2.1 The budget set by Budget Council on 2 March 2020 was £19.157m. However an 

amended budget was presented and approved on 17 September 2020 and therefore 

the budget framework was reset at that point.  Budgets have been amended as 

projects have commenced and these changes increased the 2020/21 budget to 

£26.015m. For the purposes of the outturn variance analysis, the budget carry forwards 

have been removed from this which reduces the budget for comparative purposes to 

£24.168m. 

 

 

 

 

 

23



 

Table 2 – General Fund Revenue Budget Amendments 

 

Date of 
Approval 

Revenue Budget amendment £’000 

  24,675 

August 2020 2019/20 Grants received 199 

August 2020 Maintenance Reserve 40 

August 2020 Government Re-organisation – Local Priorities Reserve 50 

August 2020 Regeneration Reserve 60 

September 
2020 

Leisure SK – Local Priorities Reserve 50 

October 2020 Leisure SK – Local Priorities Reserve 500 

October 2020 ICT Reserve 36 

October 2020 Maintenance Reserve 80 

October 2020 Climate Change Reserve 20 

October 2020 Leisure SK – Management Fee – Local Priorities Reserve 250 

December 
2020 

Maintenance Reserve 45 

December 
2020 

Invest to Save 10 

Total  26,015 

 

2.2 The forecast outturn position as at Quarter 3 was reported to the Finance, Economic 

Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 23 

February 2021.  At this time, the forecast adverse variance on the total cost of provision 

of service was £320k. It can be confirmed that the outturn shows a balanced year end 

position reflecting the work Members and officers have jointly undertaken in ensuring 

that there is not an adverse position at the year end.  This places the Council in a 

positive position moving into the current financial year, which is particularly important 

given the challenges currently being experienced on the budget framework in 2021/22  

2.3 The General Fund outturn position is shown in Table 3 and Appendix A provides a 

detailed breakdown of the funding of the revenue expenditure. Appendix B provides 

details of the variances per service area along with supporting information explaining 

the main variances.  The table confirms at line 6 (net cost of services) that a balanced 

position has been achieved after utilising an element of the Government support 

funding without the need to utilise its own resources, specifically the Budget 

stabilisation reserve.  The table confirms that there is a significant amount of 

Government funding that was received during the year (which is referenced at line 16).  

Of the allocated funding, £1.249m will not be required to be used to meet 2020/21 

costs and is therefore proposed to be allocated to a specific COVID recovery reserve in 

order to meet ongoing challenges during 2021/22 (and during the period in which 

further Government funding is not expected). 

 

 

 

 

 

24



       Table 3 – General Revenue Outturn Position 

 

Description 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget  

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

(less 
proposed 
Budget 

C/F) 

2020/21  
Provisional 

Outturn  

Variance 
to 

Current 
Budget 

2020/21 
Outturn 
Variance 

 

 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

1 Commercial & Operations 9,664 9,246 9,816 570 6.2% 

2 Corporate 10,109 9,796 9,169 (627) (6.4%) 

3 Growth & Culture 6,718 6,359 6,167 (192) (3.0%) 

4 Housing & Property 2,090 1,333 1,612 279 20.9% 

5 HRA Recharge (2,566) (2,566) (2,592) (26) (1.0%) 

6 Net Cost of Service 26,015 24,168 24,172 4 - 

7 
Removal of Accounting 
Adjustments 

0 0 (2,467) (2,467) - 

8 
Removal of Additional 
Depreciation 

0 0 (684) (684) - 

9 Re-stated Net Cost of Service 26,015 24,168 21,021 (3,147) (13.0%) 

10 
Interest Payable and 
Receivable 

(107) (107) (148) (41)  

11 Minimum Revenue Provision 148 148 142 (6)   

12 Revenue Contribution to Capital 72 72 15 (57)  

13 Depreciation (4,114) (4,114) (4,114) 0   

14 Net Budget Requirement 22,014 20,167 16,916 (3,251)   

15 Funding (17,386) (17,386) (17,329) 57   

16 Covid-19 Specific funding  (1,675) (1,675) (1,793) (118)  

17 
Transfers to/(from) earmarked 
reserves 

(1,638) (513) 235 748   

18 
Proposed transfer to Covid 
Recovery Reserve 

0 0 1,249 1,249  

19 
Budget Carry Forwards from 
20/21 underspends 

0 722 722 0  

20 Net Budget (Surplus)/Deficit 1,315 1,315 0 (1,315)   

 

- Line 7 – removal of accounting entries, specifically:  

- IAS19 (employee pension) - the cost of providing employee benefits should be 
recognised in the period in which the benefit is earned by the employee, rather 
than when it is paid or payable.  

- Revenue Expenditure Financed from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) and 
REFCUS is capital expenditure, which is incurred on non-Council owed assets, 
for example, disabled facilities grants and the shop front grant scheme. 

- Capital grants received in year of £243k will fund specific capital schemes for the 
university fit out and electric charging points.  

 

These adjustments are detailed in table 4 below: 

 

 

25



 Table 4 – Removal of Accounting Adjustments 

Accounting 
Adjustments 

Commercial 
& 

Operations 
£’000 

Corporate 

£’000 

Growth & 
Culture 
£’000 

Housing & 
Property 
£’000 

Total 

£’000 

IAS 19 (1,123) 485 (359) (148) (1,145) 

REFCUS 362 0 88 0 450 

Revaluations (814) 0 0 (1,138) (1,952) 

Capital Grants 43 0 200 0 243 

Accumulated 
Absences 

(21) (29) (8) (5) (63) 

Additional 
Depreciation 

(216) (12) (420) (36) (684) 

Total (1,769) 444 (499) (1,327) (3,151) 

 

- Line 9 –shows the total net overall expenditure for the Council. 

- Line 10 – additional interest income has been earned through investment of 
increased cash balances and interest rate changes. No external borrowing was 
required in 2020/21 so no interest charges have been incurred.  

- Line 13 – in accordance with accounting requirements, depreciation is charged at 
the costs of services where relevant (lines 1-4) but then reversed out at line 13 to 
ensure there is not an impact on Council Tax and the General Fund.   

Once the accounting adjustments (line 7 of table 3) and the additional depreciation (line 
8 of table 3) have been removed from the Directorate, the ‘controllable’ variance can be 
identified (line 9 of table 3).  

 

Table 5 – General Revenue Outturn Position excluding accounting adjustments 

Description 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget  

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

(less 
proposed 

Budget 
C/F) 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn  

Variance 
to 

Current 
Budget 

2020/21 
Outturn 
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

Commercial & Operations 9,664 9,246 8,047 (1,199) (13.0%) 

Corporate 10,109 9,796 9,612 (184) (1.9%) 

Growth & Culture 6,718 6,359 5,669 (690) (10.8%) 

Housing & Property 2,090 1,333 285 (1,048) (78.6%) 

HRA Recharge (2,566) (2,566) (2,592) (26) (1.0%) 

Net Cost of Service 26,015 24,168 21,021 (3,147) (13.0%) 

 

2.5 Appendix B provides further details of the outturn revenue position for each Directorate 

along with variance comments. 

2.6 During the year 2020/21 there have been a high number of grants that have been 

awarded to the Council in order to serve a number of objectives ranging from 

supporting local businesses, communities, residents and also to provide specific 

financial support to the Council for reimbursement of lost income and supporting the 

financial recovery of the culture and leisure services.  These are summarised below in 

table 6: 

26



Table 6 - Specific Covid Grants 2020/21 

Name of Grant Amount 
Awarded 
2020/21 
£’000 

Re-opening High Streets Safely 126 

Covid Compliance and Enforcement (Covid Marshalls) 55 

LCC Covid Outbreak Management (Test and Trace) 100 

Leisure Recovery 321 

Cultural Recovery 230 

Furlough scheme (Arts and Building Control) 331 

Business Grants awarded  42,145 

Winter Grant Scheme  8 

Tranches 1 – 4 Government support for Council  1,793 

Council Tax Hardship Grant 924 

Co-payment losses contribution 653 

2.7 The fees and charges (income) analysis below shows the variance between the outturn 

and the amended budget which demonstrates the difficulties experienced particularly with 

specific venues such as arts venues being closed throughout the year.  Members will be 

aware that the Government introduced an income loss compensation scheme which 

reimbursed the Council 75p for every £1 lost. This scheme enabled the Council to access 

approximately £653k to offset the income losses shown below. 

Table 7 – General fund Significant Income Streams 

 
 

Significant Income (in 
order of Amended Budget) 

Original 
Budget 

Amended 
Current 
Budget 

 Provisional 
Outturn 

Outturn 
Variance 

Outturn 
Variance 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 % 

Green Waste Collection (1,112) (1,214) (1,269) (55) (5%) 

Development Management (1,154) (822) (935) (113) (14%) 

Licensing (294) (238) (252) (14) (6%) 

Stamford Car Parks (820) (231) (330) (99) (43%) 

Commercial Waste (367) (230) (274) (44) (19%) 

Investment Property (423) (227) (325) (98) (43%) 

Land Charges (233) (150) (183) (33) (22%) 

Grantham Car Parks (473) (136) (186) (50) (37%) 

Stamford Arts Centre (749) (103) (42) 61 59% 

Miscellaneous Property (114) (101) (64) 37 37% 

Stamford Market (173) (73) (86) (13) (18%) 

Guildhall Arts Centre (312) (44) (27) 17 39% 

Grantham Market (46) (20) (26) (6) (30%) 

Bourne Market (19) (7) (16) (9) (129%) 

TOTAL (6,289) (3,596) (4,015) (419) (12%) 

27



Chart 1 - Significant Income for 2020/21  

 

3 General Fund Capital Programme 2020/21 

3.1 The amended budget set by Council on 17 September 2020 for the 2020/21 General 

Fund Capital programme was £3.522m which was subsequently increased by the 

additional Disabled Facilities Grant of £116k as shown in table 8. 
 

Table 8 – General Fund Capital Budget 
 

Date of 
Approval 

Capital Budget amendment £’000 

17 September 
2020 

 3,522 

February 2021  Additional Disabled Facilities Grant 116 

Total  3,638 
 

3.2 Table 9 summarises the General Fund capital outturn position as at 31 March 2021. 

There is an underspend of £1.017m which includes an additional Disabled Facilities 

Grant award of £116k in February 2021, deferral of works to the re-surfacing of 

Welham car park and several property renovations which have been delayed during 

Covid-19 restrictions and will be completed in 2021/22. 

 

 

 
 

(1,350)(1,150)(950)(750)(550)(350)(150)50

Green Waste Collection

Development Management

Licensing

Stamford Car Parks

Commercial Waste

Investment Property

Land Charges

Grantham Car Parks

Stamford Arts Centre

Miscellaneous Property

Stamford Market

Guildhall Arts Centre

Grantham Market

Bourne Market

£'000

2020/21 Significant Income - Budget vs  Outturn

2020/21 Current Budget 2020/21 Outturn

28



Table 9 – General Fund Capital Outturn Position 
 

Heading 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget 

 
£’000 

2020/21  
Amended 
Budget 

(less C/F 
approved 

by Council 
March 
2021)  
£’000 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn 
 

£’000 

2020/21 
Outturn 
Variance 

 
£’000 

Commercial & Operations 1,963 2,116 1,557 (559) 

Corporate  55 55 19 (36) 

Growth & Culture 1,620 1,076 654 (422) 

Total Expenditure 3,638 3,247 2,230 (1,017) 

Financed By:     

Capital Grant and Contributions     

-  Disabled Facility Grant (976) (976) (614) (362) 

-  Historic England (100) (100) (15) (85) 

-  Electric Charging Points 0 0 (43) 43 

-  University Fit-Out 0 0 (97) 97 

Capital Reserve (755) (755) (758) 3 

Revenue Reserve Funding     

-  Shop Front Scheme (28) (28) (12) (16) 

-  Local priorities Reserve (431) (309) (242) (67) 

-  GLEP 0 0 (10) 10 

-  Regeneration (290) (290) (229) (61) 

-  ICT (55) (55) (6) (49) 

-  S106 (12) (12) 0 (12) 

Useable Capital Receipts (991) (722) (204) (518) 

Total Financing (3,638) (3,247) (2,230) (1,017) 

3.3 Details of the individual capital schemes included in each directorate are detailed at 

Appendix C including variance comments.  Additional General Fund capital budget 

carry forward requests are detailed in Appendix D and approval of these carry forward 

requests will allow approved schemes to be completed in 2021/22. 

4 General Fund Reserves 2020/21 

4.1 An integral element of the closedown procedure is to undertake a review of the usage 

and levels of the Council’s reserves and balances.  The financial statements reflect the 

proposed use of these and specific details of the significant balances and reserves are 

set out below and detailed at Appendix E.  A summary of the key observations and 

proposals are: 

- Maintenance reserve – top up proposed to a balance of £500k in order to provide 

funding for essential works that arise during the course of the year in respect of the 

Council’s property portfolio. 

- Budget stabilisation reserve – there has been no requirement to use any resources 

from the reserve as the Government COVID grants and proactive budget reductions 

have been sufficient to meet the cost pressures and income reductions that have 

been experienced during the year. 

- Proposal to create a COVID recovery reserve arising from the residual balance from 

the Government COVID grants to be specifically used to fund services (from both a 

cost or income loss perspective) that are continuing to experience difficulty in achieving 

29



budgeted levels during 2021/22 due to the ongoing impact of the pandemic.  The 

balance of this reserve will be £1.249m which wholly consists of currently unused 

Government COVID recovery grants.   

Discretionary Reserves £11.334m (lines 1-13) 

4.2 These reserves have been established to financially support the delivery of the 
Council’s Corporate Plan ambitions including both revenue and capital projects.  Lines 
1 to 13 set out the provisional balance on each reserve as at 31 March 2021 based on 
the specific requirements of the reserve use during the financial year.  Commentary is 
provided below on the main movements during the course of the year: 

- ICT investment – this reserve has been increased by a net £199k which is a 

combination of a previous approved top up and in-year reserve use to fund the agile roll-

out to staff and support the migration to Windows 365.  

- Commercial – there has been no use of the reserve during the year and Council 

approved a reduction to the reserve from 1 April 2021 to £250k in order to increase the 

balance to the Regeneration Reserve. 

- Local priorities reserve – this is the Council’s most significant reserve and as at 31 

March 2021 has an actual closing balance of £5.758m reducing to £4.269m after 

commitments have been taken into consideration.  During the year the Council received 

New Homes Bonus receipt of £1.8m which was credited to the reserve and the reserve 

was used to make the contributions to pay Leisure SK management fee. 

- Housing Delivery – this reserve is used to continue to respond to on-going demands for 

supporting residents adapt their properties to meet their specific requirements.  A 

transfer of £362k was made to the reserve at year end. 

- Regeneration reserve – this reserve is currently being used to fund the current holding 

and development costs of the St Martins Park site at Stamford.  The reduction in the 

reserve balance reflects the costs during 2020/21. 

Governance Reserves £5.139m (lines 14-21) 

4.3 These reserves are maintained to mitigate risk, satisfy statutory and grant awarding 
bodies’ requirements and support prudent financial management. 

 

4.4 The Insurance Reserve (line 14) - provides cover to meet unforeseen costs relating to 
insurance claims over and above the provisions made in year as part of managing the 
‘in house risk’ with an increased self-insured strategy.  The balance on this reserve is 
£272k.  
 

4.5 The Council holds two Pension Reserves (lines 15 and 16) - The former employees 
reserves funds the annual costs associated with these individuals.  The balance on 
these reserves totals £341k at 31 March 2021.  The current employees reserve has 
now been removed as pension costs for staff are budgeted at service cost level. 

 

4.6 Budget Stabilisation Reserve (line 17) - To ensure there is minimum financial disruption 

to the funding of the General Fund in respect of Business Rates income, the Council 

has established a reserve to smooth out fluctuations in year to year funding. This 

reserve has a balance of £2.843m as at 31 March 2021 and has been further increased 

by £1.123m for 2021/22. For the financial year 2020/21 there has been no requirement 

to use this reserve as overall costs have been kept within the amended budget 

framework. 

30



4.7 COVID Recovery reserve (line 18) – a proposal to create a specific reserve of £1.249m 

in order to meet ongoing fluctuations in budgets arising from the ongoing operating 

restrictions that are impacting on specific services of the Council. 

4.8 Special Expense Area reserves (SEA) (line 21) - £86k of the Grantham SEA reserve 

has been used to fund the Wyndham Park improvements, Christmas Lights in 

Grantham and the car park improvements at Queen Elizabeth Park.  This reserve has 

been replenished by £83k leaving a balance of £276k.  This is broken down as: 

- Bourne SEA £33k 

- Grantham SEA £110k 

- Langtoft SEA £2k 

- Stamford SEA £131k 

General Fund working balance £1.358m (line 24) 
 

4.9 The purpose of this working balance is to ensure there is sufficient financial resource 
available in order to meet unforeseen events during the course of the financial year.  
The proposed minimum balance is set at a level that reflects the financial risk the 
Council is currently exposed to. This objective is also being met from the Budget 
Stabilisation Reserve and therefore the two balances combined provide a robust 
financial cushion for the Council to access should there be further financial volatility. 
This is a provisional balance as further work is being undertaken to determine the final 
outturn with regard to the allocation of the additional S31 grants that was received 
during 2020/21 in connection with business rate relief.     

 
General Fund Capital Reserves £2.428m (line 29) 
 

4.10 LAMS reserve £18k (line 26) - The Local Authority Mortgage Scheme (LAMS) is no 
longer in operation for all authorities; however, the Council continues to receive 
investment interest that is derived from the investment that was placed to support the 
scheme.  The remaining balance of £18k will be retained until six year after the final 
mortgage which was taken out in October 2016.  At the end of the investment period 
the balance will be reviewed in relation to the outstanding guarantee commitment and 
excess funds returned to balances.  
 

4.11 General Fund - Capital Reserve - £296k (line 27) -The General Fund capital reserve is 
used to assist with the funding of the capital programme.  It can be seen that the 
reserve is close to a zero balance which reflects the current Council objective of 
utilising its reserve to fund the capital programme in lieu of undertaking external 
borrowing.  However it is clear that the Council will imminently need to undertake 
borrowing as internal resources are depleted.  

4.12  Useable Capital Receipts Reserve £2.114m (line 28) -This reserve is one of the 
sources of funding the General Fund capital programme. During the year the Council 
has received very limited capital receipts and only arising from the sale of surplus 
vehicles.  If the Council is to continue to utilise internal resources to fund its capital 
ambitions, there will need to be a renewed emphasis on the generation of capital 
receipts from the sale of surplus assets.    

5 Revenue Budget 2020/21 – Housing Revenue Account 

5.1 The budget set by Council on 2 March 2020 was a surplus of £5.493m.  This surplus is 

used to provide funding for the external loan and to enable reserve levels to be 

maintained that subsequently fund the capital programme and service improvements.  

Table 10 details the amendments to the 2020/21 budget to a surplus of £4.593m. For the 

31



purposes of the outturn variance analysis, the budget carry forwards have been removed 

from this which reduces the budgeted surplus for comparative purposes to £6.313m, the 

actual surplus for the year is £6.290m. The surplus is fully utilised to fund future 

investment in stock growth and property maintenance.  Table 11 shows the HRA outturn 

position for 2020/21. 

Table 10 – Housing Revenue Account Budget Amendments 

Date of 
Approval 

Revenue Budget amendment £’000 

  (5,493) 

August 2020 2019/20 Budget Carry Forwards 120 

December 
2020 

Stock Condition Surveys 780 

Total   (4,593) 

 

       Table 11 – HRA Revenue Outturn Position 

Description 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

 
£’000 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

less 
proposed 
Budget 
Carry 

Forwards 
£’000 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn 
 

£’000 

Variance 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Income (25,637) (25,637) (25,106) 531 

Expenditure 18,519 16,799 16,611 (188) 

Net Cost of HRA Services (7,118) (8,838) (8,495) 343 

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,778 2,778 2,530 (248) 

Interest and Investment Income (253) (253) (252) 1 

Investment Property Inc & Exp 0 0 (3) (3) 

Return on Pension Assets  0 0 270 270 

Net (Gain)/loss on sale of HRA Assets  0 0 (620) (620) 

Capital receipts pooling  0 0  768  768 

IAS19* 0 0 (488) (488) 

(Surplus)/Deficit for the year (4,593) (6,313) (6,290) 23 
 

 

5.2 Appendix F provides details of the HRA revenue outturn position together with 

significant variances. 

6 HRA Capital Programme 2020/21 

6.1 The budget set by Council on 17 September 2021 for 2020/21 HRA Capital Programme 

is £17.616m. Table 12 summarises the HRA capital outturn position as at 31 March 

2021.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

32



Table 12 – HRA Capital Outturn Position 

Capital Scheme 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget 

 
£’000 

2020/21  
Amended 
Budget 

(less C/F 
approved 

by 
Council 
March 
2021)  
£’000 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn 
 

£’000 

Variance to 
Current 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Energy Efficiency Initiatives 1,900 1,445 786  (659)  

ICT 30 0 0 0 

Refurbishment & Improvement 15,540 14,577 2,221 (12,356) 

Repairs Vehicles 146 146 160 14 

Total Expenditure 17,616 16,168 3,167 (13,001) 

     

Financed By:     

HRA Capital Receipts Reserve (4,000) (3,650) (371) 3,279 

Loan Repayment Reserve (1,350) (1,350) 0 1,350 

Major Repairs Reserve (4,786) (3,718) (2,796) 922 

Property Development Reserve (7,450) (7,450) 0 7,450 

S106 (30) 0 0 0 

Total Financing (17,616) (16,168) (3,167) 13,001 
 

6.2 Appendix G provides a detailed table of the HRA capital programme outturn position 

together with significant variances. 

7 HRA Reserves 2020/21 

7.1 An integral element of the closedown procedure is to undertake a review of the usage 

and levels of the Council’s reserves and balances.  The financial statements reflect the 

proposed use of these and specific details of the significant balances and reserves are 

set out below and detailed at Appendix I. 

HRA Reserves £43.851m Line 11 

7.2 HRA working balance £2.335m (line 6) - This balance serves the same purpose as the 

General Fund working balance in that it is established to respond to unforeseen 

financial events that occur during the financial year.  The Council policy is to aim to 

keep the working balance at approximately 10% of the operating expenditure.  

Therefore it is necessary to add further resources to the reserve to increase the 

provisional balance as at 31 March 2021.   

7.3 Capital Receipts Reserve (HRA) £8.057m (line 8) - The Council has established a 

capital receipts reserve where the ‘Right to Buy’ sale receipts are allocated. During the 

year £1.935m receipts have been received with 29 right to buy sales (compared to 56 

RTB sales in 2019/20).   During the year £371k of the reserve has been used to 

contribute towards the financing of the capital programme and pooling payments of 

£767k have been made to Government.  This reserve will continue to be utilised to 

contribute to the provision of affordable housing and the provision of additional Council 

housing stock. 

7.4 Major Repairs Reserve (HRA) £17.901m (line 9) - This reserve has been increased by 

£6.404m in accordance with the HRA business plan and an annual allocation is a 

requirement in order to provide sustainable funding for the HRA capital programme.  In 

order to provide financing for the 2020/21 programme an allocation of £2.796m has 

33



been utilised.  This will continue to be the primary financing for the housing 

improvement elements of the Capital Programme. 

8 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and 

Scrutiny 

8.1 Quarterly budget monitoring and forecasting reports have been presented to Finance, 

Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

during 2020/21. These have updated Members on the estimated outturn position for the 

year.  These reports are referenced at the background papers section of this report. 

9 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

9.1 Committee Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the Authority, 

as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in 

line with the budget and are targeted towards the Council's priorities. Monitoring 

enables the early identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely 

corrective action. 

9.2 This report provides an overview of the provisional outturn financial position for the 

Council. 

10 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

10.1 The outturn report is presented to the Committee for its consideration and in order for it 

to make specific recommendations to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

11 Financial Implications  

11.1 These are included in the report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

12 Legal and Governance Implications  

12.1 The terms of reference of the Governance and Audit Committee require the Committee to 

consider for approval the annual revenue and capital outturn report.  

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

13 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

13.1 There are no equality or safeguarding implications arising as a result of this report. 

14 Risk and Mitigation 

14.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks have been 

identified. 

15 Community Safety Implications  

15.1 There are no community safety implications arising as a result of this report. 

16 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

16.1 The report has a neutral carbon impact. 

17 Background Papers 

17.1 Determination of Budget 2020/21 and indicative budgets to 2022/23 – General Fund, 

Housing Revenue Account and associated Capital Programmes Report  

34



http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25022/Council%20Budget%20Re

port.pdf 

17.2 Finance Impact Report – May 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25630/FinanceImpactReportP1.pdf 

17.3 Finance Impact Report – June 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26128/Financial%20Impact%20Report.pdf 

17.4 Finance Impact and Budget Monitoring Report – July 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26634/Finance%20Update%20Report.pdf 

17.5 Finance Update Report – April 2020 – July 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27516/Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%20

2020-21.pdf 

17.6 Amended Budget Proposals 2020/21 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27458/Amended%20budget%20prop

osals%20202021%20report.pdf 

17.7 Finance Update Report – April 2020 – September 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s28172/Qtr2%20Finance%20Update.pdf 

17.8 Finance Update Report – April 2020 – December 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29139/FEDCO%20Qtr3%20Finan

ce%20Update.pdf 

18 Appendices 

18.1 Appendix A – 2020/21 General Fund Revenue Summary - Outturn  

18.2 Appendix B – 2020/21 General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis  

18.3 Appendix C – 2020/21 General Fund Capital Programme – Outturn  

18.4 Appendix D – 2020/21 Budget Carry Forwards General Fund Revenue & Capital 

18.5 Appendix E – 2020/21 General Fund Reserves Statement 

18.6 Appendix F – 2020/21 HRA Revenue Summary - Outturn and Significant Variance 

Analysis 

18.7 Appendix G – 2020/21 HRA Capital Programme – Outturn  

18.8 Appendix H – 2020/21 Budget Carry Forwards HRA Revenue & Capital 

18.9 Appendix I  – 2020/21 HRA Reserves Statement  

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by: n/a  Not applicable 

Final Decision date   21 July 2021 

 

35

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25022/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25022/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25630/FinanceImpactReportP1.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26128/Financial%20Impact%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26634/Finance%20Update%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27516/Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%202020-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27516/Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%202020-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27458/Amended%20budget%20proposals%20202021%20report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27458/Amended%20budget%20proposals%20202021%20report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s28172/Qtr2%20Finance%20Update.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29139/FEDCO%20Qtr3%20Finance%20Update.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29139/FEDCO%20Qtr3%20Finance%20Update.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

2020/21 General Fund Revenue Summary  
 

Description 

2020/21 
Amended 
Budget 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

(less 
Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn 

Variance 
to 

Current 
Budget  

2020/21 
Outturn 
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

Commercial & 
Operations 

9,664 9,246 9,816 570 6.2% 

Corporate 10,109 9,796 9,169 (627) (6.4%) 

Growth & Culture 6,718 6,359 6,167 (192) (3.0%) 

Housing & Property 2,090 1,333 1,612 279 20.9% 

HRA Recharge (2,566) (2,566) (2,592) (26) (1.0%) 

Net Cost of Service 26,015 24,168 24,172 4 - 

Removal of Accounting 
Adjustments 

0 0 (2,467) (2,467) - 

Removal of Additional 
Depreciation 

0 0 (684) (684) - 

Re-Stated Net Cost of 
Service 

26,015 24,168 21,021 (3,147) (13.0%) 

Interest Payable and 
Receivable 

(107) (107) (148) (41)  

Minimum Revenue 
Provision 

148 148 142 (6)   

Revenue Contribution to 
Capital 

72 72 15 (57)  

Depreciation (4,114) (4,114) (4,114) 0   

Net Budget 
Requirement 

22,014 20,167 16,916 (3,251)   

Funding and Resources:         

Council Tax (7,840) (7,840) (7,840) 0   

Retained Business 
Rates (S31 Grant, 
Pooling Gain, 
Renewable energy) 

(4,954) (4,954) (4,954) 0   

New Homes Bonus (1,814) (1,814) (1,814) 0   

Rural Grant (295) (295) (295) 0   

Collection Fund 
(Surplus)/Deficit 

(957) (957) (957) 0   

Covid-19 Specific 
funding 

(126) (126) (816) (690)  

Co-payment losses 
contribution 

(1,400) (1,400) (653) 747  

Total Funding (17,386) (17,386) (17,329) 57   

Covid-19 Specific 
funding not allocated 

(1,675) (1,675) (1,793) (118)  

Transfers to/(from) 
earmarked reserves 

(1,638) (513) 235 748   

37



 

Proposed transfer to 
Covid Recovery 
Reserve 

0 0 1,249 1,249  

Budget Carry Forwards 
from 20/21 underspends 

0 722 722 0  

Net Budget 
(Surplus)/Deficit 

1,315 1,315 0 (1,315)   

 

38



Appendix B 
2020/21 General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis 

 

Commercial & Operations 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(less 

Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

Current 
Income 
Budget 

Current 
Budget 

(less 
Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn (less 
Accounting 

Adjustments) 

Variance to 
Current 
Budget 

 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Building Control 805,239 (674,716) 130,523 43,423 (87,100) (66.7%) 

Commercial & 
Operations  

262,900 0  262,900 269,844 6,944 2.6% 

Community 
Resilience 

404,250 (100) 404,150 374,942 (29,208) (7.2%) 

Corporate 
Operations 

4,306,464 (919,676) 3,386,788 2,706,706 (680,082) (20.1%) 

Public Protection 1,094,600 (419,450) 675,150 551,627 (123,523) (18.3%) 

Street Scene 5,970,350 (1,583,600) 4,386,750 4,100,274 (286,476) (6.5%) 

Total 12,843,803 (3,597,542) 9,246,261 8,046,816 (1,199,445) (13.0%) 

 
 
 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Building Control 

The Building Control partnership income has recovered strongly following an initial 
negative impact during quarter 1 of the pandemic and has returned to budgeted levels.  
The initial reduced income for the period April to June was partly offset by Furlough 
and Job Retention Scheme grants of £33k. At the outturn the trading account has 
made a surplus of £25k which will be re-invested into the service in future years 

(87) 

Corporate Operations 

In-year lease of office space rental to third parties for their occupancy at the Council 
offices resulting in additional rent and service charge income of (£62k) 

Markets income was (£20k) higher than the reduced amended budgets as essential 
items traders continued during the year 

- Stamford (£14k) 
- Grantham (£6k) 

Business Rates- in year revaluations of the Market functions by the Valuation Office 
have resulted in a net refund of previous years’ charges (£21k) 

Crowdfunding – scheme has now ceased with an in year underspend of (£65k) 

 

Car parking ticket sales income from August 2020 to March 2021 were higher than the 

amended budgeted levels (£149k) despite the national changes in Covid-19 restrictions 

(overall for the year Grantham achieved approximately 28.9% of previous year income 

and Stamford achieved approximately 40.2%) 

(536) 

39



In year vacancy of Communities Officer has resulted in an underspend of (£24k). This 

post has now been recruited into 

Customer Services – In year customer services advisor vacancies and additional 

income received from Housing for call resourcing support (£53k) 

Open spaces & Closed Burial Grounds - there has been a reduction in responsive 

works required during the year (£36k) 

A grant was awarded during 20/21 to fund the re-opening of the High Street (£126k).  

To date £20k has been incurred that meets the strict criteria of the grant conditions 

Public Protection 

Two full time Environmental Health Officer posts were vacant during the year resulting 
in an underspend of (£39k). Recruitment is underway for these posts 

Income received arising from works undertaken in previous years - works in default 
and disabled adaptations (£20k) 

(59) 

Street Scene 

Additional income of (£46k) has been received for collection of bulky waste and the 
sale of wheelie bins for landlords and new developers in respect of new developments 

Vehicle Repairs - Cost of parts and consumables have been reduced in year due to 
the introduction of a stock management system and the previous capacity bid for 
increased prices has not been required resulting in a saving of (£40k) 

Green Waste Collection - Additional income of (£55k) has been received with 29,641 
households renewing their subscription for 2020/21 and 1,589 new households joining 
the service throughout the year.  94.1% of these households made their payment 
online with 70.5% paying by direct debit 

Commercial Waste - The service continues to grow with additional strong annual sales 
value achieved each month after the initial lockdown was lifted 

Fuel prices remained low during the year with the average price being lower than the 
budgeted assumed price.  This is resulted in an under spend of (£98k) 

(239) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40



Corporate 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(less 

Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

Current 
Income 
Budget 

Current 
Budget 

(less 
Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn (less 
Accounting 

Adjustments) 

Variance 
to 

Current 
Budget 

 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Centralised & 
Business 
Support 

532,900 (3,200) 529,700 371,321 (158,379) (29.9%) 

Communications 325,610 (4,300) 321,310 349,740 28,430 8.8% 

Corporate 3,411,444 (98,550) 3,312,894 2,631,498 (681,396) (20.6%) 

Finance 2,054,781 (76,350) 1,978,431 1,997,856 19,425 1.0% 

Human 
Resources 

350,000 (4,200) 345,800 385,668 39,868 11.5% 

ICT Services 1,608,240 (97,200) 1,511,040 1,429,618 (81,422) (5.4%) 

Legal & 
Democratic 

1,582,800 (187,500) 1,395,300 1,199,207 (196,093) (14.1%) 

OD & Change 526,559 0 526,559 509,679 (16,880) (3.2%) 

Revenues & 
Benefits 

20,248,150 (20,373,420) (125,270) 737,671 862,941 688.9% 

TOTAL 30,640,484 (20,844,720) 9,795,764 9,612,258 (183,506) (1.9%) 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Centralised & Business Support 

A reduction of postage, printing and advertising requirements during the financial year 

has resulted in an in-year under spend of (£146k).  This underspend is a direct result 

of the changes to working practices that resulted in the majority of the workforce 

operating remotely 

(146) 
 
 
 

Corporate  

General reduction in anticipated expenditure across several different cost centres 

(£222k) 

Original budgeted procurement savings of £239k of which £40k included within the 

amended budget were not achieved due to the procurement programme being 

severely disrupted during Covid-19 and officers being reassigned to other priority 

during the year 

Senior team in year vacancies have resulted in underspends of (£80k) 

Completion of the agile rollout programme has resulted in under spends of (£40k) - 

offset by a reduced reserve movement 

New burdens grant monies of (£170k) have been received which are proposed to be 

moved to the newly created Covid Recovery reserve to aid additional works required in 

2021/22 

(472) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

41



Human Resources 

Additional costs have been incurred (£41k) due to the requirement to appoint external 

specialist recruitment consultants to support the implementation of the corporate 

restructure that was approved by Council in October 2020 

41 
 
 

ICT Services 

Changes to centralised licence and corporate licence fees have resulted in savings of 
(£86k) 

Reduced number of office printers and usage during 2020/21 has resulted in savings of 
(£22k).  This is a direct saving arising from staff not working from the main Council 
offices during the year 

Reduced level of income of £23k compared to budget arising from an external hosting 
agreement during 2020/21. This arrangement will be reviewed to ensure the Council is 
achieving value for money 

(85) 

Legal and Democratic 

Legal – In year vacancies and the required level of resource during Covid-19 through 

the Lincolnshire Legal Services partnership has resulted in an under spend of (£36k). 

The cost and volume of outsourced work continues to be assessed for the Lincolnshire 

Legal Services partnership 

Democratic & Elections – The majority of meetings have been held virtually during 

Covid-19 resulting in a saving of (£21k) on members travel expenses.  Members 

Allowances have been underspent by (£36k) due to one vacant ward during the year 

and the distributed allocations in accordance with the member allowance scheme.   

Changes to individual registration have resulted in a saving of (£10k) in casual staff 

costs for canvassing. In year vacancies within the service area have resulted in an 

under spend of (£22k) 

(125) 

OD & Change 

Transformation savings of £100k included within the amended budget have not been 

achieved in 2020/21. The programme is being re-assessed in 2021/22 

Reduced requirement and availability of training courses has resulted in an under 

spend of (£63k) 

 
37 

Revenues & Benefits 

During Covid-19, the focus has been the administration of grants payments so 

recovering overpayments for benefit payments made without entitlement has recouped 

£106k below the budgeted level 

There has been a reduction in income from court costs amounting to £240k during the 

pandemic period following the temporary suspension of all recovery processes for 

Council Tax and Business Rates. Court dates have resumed in 2021/22 

Additional DWP grant income (£77k) has been received in 2020/21 which will be 

utilised for service improvements in future years 

In year vacancies within the service area in anticipation of automated processes which 

have been delayed has resulted in under spend of (£94k) 

Covid grant payments of £739k for Council Tax hardship have been made during 

2020/21. These are funded by Section 31 grants received  

914 

 

42



Growth & Culture 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(less 

Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

Current 
Income 
Budget 

Current 
Budget 

(less 
Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn (less 
Accounting 

Adjustments) 

Variance 
to Current 

Budget 

 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Arts & Culture 2,329,172 (266,357) 2,062,815 1,437,785 (625,030) (30.3%) 

Development & 
Policy 

1,539,471 (1,018,721) 520,750 555,746 34,996 6.7% 

Growth 
Management 

707,990 (148,225)  559,765 605,668 45,903 8.2% 

Invest SK 549,981 (10,069) 539,912 457,416 (82,496) (15.3%) 

Leisure 2,797,884 (122,150) 2,675,734 2,612,709 (63,025) (2.4%) 

Total 7,924,498 (1,565,522) 6,358,976 5,669,324 (689,652) (10.8%) 

 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Arts & Culture 

The Council were successful in securing Cultural Recovery grant of (£230k) for the 
Arts Centres. This was used to mitigate the losses of income during pandemic. A 
further application has been made for round 2 and the Council has been awarded 
£100k  

A number of employees were furloughed during the year and income has been 
received from the Job Retention Scheme for (£297k) to offset the costs £369k 

(527) 

Development & Policy 
The level of planning applications has increased this year resulting in income from 
fees and charges overachieving by (£120k). There were more major applications 
received against the amended budget.  Agency costs have only partly been funded 
by a number of vacant posts within the service area with a net cost of £93k 
overspend. These necessary costs were covered by the additional income above and 
permanent recruitment is being undertaken during 2021/22 
 

Conservation - There are ongoing expenses for scaffolding to support a conservation 
building within the district £17k. Agency staff covering vacant posts has resulted in an 
overspend of £22k. Recruitment is underway 

12 

Growth Management  
Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) Projects have predominately been revenue in 2020/21 
resulting in an overspend of £76k, mitigated by a reduction in contribution of grant 
required to fund capital expenditure 
 
Revenue works have now been completed on the university fit out space due to 
changing requirements resulting in an underspend of (£50) 
 
In year vacancies within the growth management team have resulted in an under 
spend of (£40k) 
 
 

(14) 

43



Invest SK 
Following a review of the funding levels to ISK for the current financial year, a 
proportion of uncommitted budget has been returned to the Council which has 
resulted in an underspend of (£110k) 

(110) 

 

Housing & Property 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(less 

Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

Current 
Income 
Budget 

Current 
Budget 

(less 
Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn (less 
Accounting 

Adjustments) 

Variance to 
Current 
Budget 

 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Assets & 
Estates 

1,863,579 (854,000) 1,009,579 152,198 (857,381) (84.9%) 

Housing 1,296,252 (972,730) 323,522 132,947 (190,575) (58.9%) 

TOTAL 3,159,831 (1,826,730) 1,333,101 285,145 (1,047,956) (78.6%) 

 
 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

  

Assets & Estates 
Reduction in proposed alteration works to council offices in Grantham has resulted in 
an under spend of (£832k).  It is proposed to carry forward an element of this budget to 
enable works to be undertaken during 2021/22 
 
Commercial rental income invoiced has exceeded the amended budget by (£218k).  
However as at 31 March 2021, £47k remains outstanding 
 
There has been a requirement to increase the security arrangements  at a cost of £50k 
for the St Martins Park site in Stamford.  This additional cost will be met from the 
Regeneration Reserve 
 
Feasibility costs have been reduced by (£74k) due to a change of focus away from 
commercial investment and development opportunities. The approved reserve 
movement will also be reduced 

(1,074) 

Housing 

In-year vacancies of homeless prevention officers have resulted in under spends of 
(£40k). However this function is being supported by the Rough Sleeper initiative 

Cost of converting properties to homelessness accommodation during the pandemic 
has been lower than the expected amended budget provision by (£65k) 

(105) 

 

44



Appendix C 

General Fund Capital Programme Summary 2020/21  
 

Capital Scheme 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current   
Budget  

2020/21  
Amended 

Budget less 
C/F 

approved 
by Council 
March 2021 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn 

2020/21 
Outturn  
Variance  

Variance comments 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  

Commercial & Operations  

CCTV Camera 
replacement 

12 12 0 (12) 
£6k has been incurred on this scheme but the cost has 
transferred to revenue as it is below the de minimis capital 
threshold of £10k 

Disabled Facilities Grant 976 976 614 (362) 

Applications for the use of the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) 

are received via referrals from Lincolnshire County Council 

Occupational Therapy Team.  Funding is received from an 

annual Government grant and any unspent budget at the year 

end is transferred to a specific reserve in order to fund future 

demands.  Despite the impact of Covid19 which severely 

impacted on works in homes being undertaken, 111 grants 

were successfully completed in 2020/21 with a further 15 being 

approved in-year and which will be completed in 2021/22. 

Street Scene Vehicle 
Procurement 

145 88 89 1  

Trade Waste Bins 24 24 24 0  

45



Uffington Rd - Washdown 
Facilities 

12 12 0 (12) 
£9k has been incurred on this scheme but the cost has been 
transferred to revenue as below the de minimis of £10k 

Vehicle Replacement 
Programme (Freighters) 

655 655 680 25 
Programme delivered as planned. Costs increased due to price 
increases which was unavoidable in order to ensure all service 
requirements were met 

Wheelie Bin Replacements 100 100 78 (22) 
Delivery of the final order which was scheduled for 2020/21 
has been delayed until early 2021/22 so a budget carry forward 
is required 

Vehicle Electric Charging 
Points 

39 39 72 33 
The scheme has now been completed supported by an 
external  grant of £43k and therefore there will not be an 
overspend 

Welham Car Park - 
Resurfacing 

340 150 0 (150) 

Feasibility works have been completed in 2020/21 in order for 

the full scope of the works being agreed so a budget carry 

forward of £150k is proposed 

Welham Car Park - 
Security 

9 9 0 (9) 
£6k has been incurred on this scheme but transferred to 
revenue as below the de minimis of £10k 

Welham Car Park - Lift 50 50 0 (50) 
Feasibility works completed in 2020/21 are being reviewed 
prior to works being procured so a budget carry forward of 
£50k is proposed 

Market Stall Covers 1 1 0 (1) 
£1k has been incurred on this scheme but transferred to 
revenue as below the de minimis of £10k 

Corporate 

Digital Services 
Compliance 

55 55 6 (49) 
Final costs of the infrastructure implementation have been 
received and these are significantly less than budget estimate 
provided at the time 

Payment Receipting 
System 

0 0 13 13 
Final consultancy costs were confirmed after amended budgets 
had been approved 

Growth & Culture 

Bourne Corn Exchange - 
Renovations 

168 168 71 (97) 
A comprehensive scheme of improvement works has been 
undertaken utilising predominantly in-house resources 
including employees from the Corn Exchange. Significant 

46



savings have been made using local suppliers where possible. 
No carry forward of budget is required 

Heritage Action Zone - 
Grantham 

120 120 37 (83) 

The budgets for this project are split between capital and 
revenue depending upon the nature of the scheme.  For 
2020/21 the total budget was set at £190k and the outturn was 
£173k.  The underspend shown on this line has been charged 
to a revenue budget to align the costs correctly 

GAC - Renovations 175 110 4 (106) The scheme of works is scheduled to commence for 2021/22 

Meres LC - Lighting 10 10 0 (10) 
This project has been completed and the revenue spend of £9k 
has been charged to revenue spend as it is below the de 
minimis £10k 

SK Stadium Hammer Cage 12 12 11 (1)  

Stamford Arts Centre - 
Roof 

195 195 114 (81) 
Works on this project have commenced but has not been 
completed during 2020/21 and so a budget carry forward of 
£81k is proposed 

Shop Front Scheme 56 56 0 (56) 
No further applications have been approved for this specific 
scheme during Covid-19.  This scheme is now being funded 
from Heritage Action Zone funding  

Public Realm 15 15 15 0 
This is the final cost in relation to this scheme which 
commenced in 2018/19 

Meres LC - Boiler 29 0 0 0 
Review of the heating system has been undertaken and budget 
has been approved by Council as part of the annual Budget 
report 

Invest & Regeneration 290 290 248 (42) 

Conversion of the former ambulance station in Stamford into 
office accommodation is awaiting final costs and the demolition 
of police houses has been delayed until April so a budget carry 
forward of £42k is proposed 

Cycle Shelter & Changing 50 50 5 (45) 

A cycle shelter to replace the demolished facility is scheduled 
to be undertaken.  These works will commence in 2021/22 
once a new site location is agreed.  Therefore a £45k budget 
carry forward is proposed 

Stamford Arts Centre – 
Regeneration  

100 50 4 (46) 
There has been a delay to the commencement of the works so 
a budget carry forward of £46k is proposed 

47



Property Acquisition 0 0 6 6  

Turnpike Close, Grantham 
- Depot 

0 0 32 32 

Initial feasibility costs for the proposed depot site completed 
prior to the end of March.  This cost will be charged to the 
overall budget allocation approved by Council in November 
2020 

University Fit-Out 0 0 107 107 
Final scheme costs incurred which has been funded by a 
capital grant (LLEP funded) received in 2020/21 

Total 3,638 3,247 2,230 (1,017)  

 

48



Appendix D 

Budget Carry Forwards – General Fund Revenue 2020/21 
 

Project 

Proposed 
Budget 
Carry 

Forward 

£’000 

Funding Commentary 

Funding of Climate 
Change initiative 

50 Local Priorities 
Reserve £27k 

Climate change 
Reserve £20k 

Grant £3k 

Funding in order to continue to 
deliver initiatives as identified  

Funding of Leisure 
Management Fee 

125 Local Priorities 
Reserve 

Budget already approved to 
provide management fee to 
Leisure SK.  This carry forward 
covers the period to 30 June 
2021 

Funding of Leisure 
development 
programme  

80 Local Priorities 
Reserve 

Allocated funding to continue the 
establishment of Leisure SK   

Funding of Local 
government re-
organisation 

34 Local Priorities 
Reserve 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget  

Funding of Saint 
Martin’s Park master 
planning 

66 Local Priorities 
Reserve 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget in order to continue the 
progression of the project  

Funding of Advertising 
& Sponsorship 

20 Invest to Save 
Reserve 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget as the contract is 
expected to be in place during 
2021/22 

Funding of Waste 
Management system 
procurement 

35 Invest to Save 
Reserve 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of Maintenance 
of assets requirements 

46 Maintenance 
Reserve 

Approval already in place via a 
Non-key decision  

Funding of committed 
play area safer surfaces 

28 Maintenance 
Reserve 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of 
configuration, security 
and deployment of ICT 
systems 

110 ICT Reserve Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of Website 
procurement 

42 ICT Reserve Funding requested in order to 
proceed with the development of 
a replacement website  

Funding of the District 
local plan 

58 Specific 
Reserve £32k 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

49



Budget 
underspend 
2020/21 £26k 

Funding of 
homelessness and 
prevention 

58 FHSB Grant 
received in 
previous years 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of Food Waste 
service 

50 Grant received 
in 19/20 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of meeting 
rooms and office 
refurbishment 
programme   

332 To be funded 
from Collection 
Fund surplus 

This is the remaining balance of 
the approved £350k   

Funding of Festivals in 
2021/22 

46 Budget 
underspend 
2020/21 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of committed 
spend on Leisure 
improvement 
programme 

10 Budget 
underspend 
2020/21 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of ICT 
requirements in order to 
implement a hybrid 
working solution for 
staff  

72 Budget 
underspends 
2020/21 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of Community 
Fund applications 

125 Budget 
underspend 
2020/21 

£73k approved schemes 
payable in 2021/22 and £52k 
available for 2021/22  

Funding of Blue Green 
Corridor project 

111 Budget 
underspend 
2020/21 

Request to carry over remaining 
approved budget for the 
continuation of the project 

Sub Total 1,498   

Grants: 

- Garden 
Village 

- Rough 
Sleeper 

- Outbreak 
Management 

 

 
 

40 
 

255 
 

54 
 

 Grants & contributions received 
that are required to fund specific 
expenditure items in the 
2021/22. 

Total 1,847   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

50



 
Financing Summary Table - Revenue 

 

Funding  £’000 

Grant funding 460 

ICT reserve 152 

Local Priorities Reserve 332 

Invest to save 55 

Maintenance Reserve 74 

Climate Change Reserve 20 

Specific Reserves 32 

Service underspends/ Collection fund 
surplus 

722 

Total 1,847 

 
 

Budget Carry Forwards – General Fund Capital 2020/21 
 

Project 

Budget 
Carry 

Forward 

£’000 

Funding 

Commentary 

Wheelie Bin Replacements 22 Capital Reserve  

Welham Car Park - 
Resurfacing 

150 Usable Capital 
Receipts 

Will this scheme 
be undertaken? 

Welham Car Park - Lift 50 Usable Capital 
Receipts 

Will this scheme 
be undertaken? 

Stamford Arts Centre - 
Roof 

81 Usable Capital 
Receipts 

 

Stamford Arts Centre - 
Regeneration 

46 Useable Capital 
Receipts 

The remaining 
carry forward of 

the approved 
£100k 

St Peter's Hill Development 
(Cycle Shelter) 

45 Local Priorities 
Reserves 

 

51



Invest & Regeneration 42 Regeneration 
Reserve 

Demolition of 
police houses 
and remaining 

works at the 
former 

ambulance 
station, Elm 

Street Stamford 

Total 436   

 

Financing Summary Table – Capital  
 

Funding  £’000 

Capital Reserve 22 

Useable Capital Receipts 45 

Local Priorities Reserve 42 

Regeneration Reserve 327 

Total 436 

 

52



APPENDIX E 

Reserves – General Fund 2020/21 

  

Description 

Actual 
Balance as 

at 31 
March 
2020 
£’000 

Provisional 
movement 

£’000 

Provisional 
Balance 

as at 
31 March 

2021 
£’000 

Reserve 
Use 

Committed 
2020/21 

 
£’000 

TOTAL 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

  Discretionary Reserves         

1 Climate Change 0 40 40 (20) 20 

2 Commercial 0 500 500 0 500 

3 Training and Development 15 0 15 0 15 

4 Street Scene 222 0 222 0 222 

5 ICT investment 177 199 376 (152) 224 

6 Economic Development & Growth 54 (22) 32 (32) 0 

7 Local Priorities Reserve 5,619 139 5,758 (1,489) 4,269 

8 Invest to Save 1,158 (142) 1,016 (55) 961 

9 Housing Delivery 1,106 362 1,468 0 1,468 

10 Property Maintenance 500 0 500 (74) 426 

11 Regeneration 1,847 (554) 1,293 (42) 1,251 

12 Food Waste 74 (24) 50 0 50 

13 Crowd Funding 64 0 64 0 64 

    10,836 498 11,334 (1,864) 9,470 

  Governance Reserves       

14 Insurance Reserve 309 (37) 272 0 272 

15 
Pensions Reserve - Former 
Employees 377 (36) 341 

 
0 

 
341 

16 
Pensions Reserve - Current 
Employees 58 (58) 0 

 
0 

 
0 

17 Budget Stabilisation 2,843 0 2,843 0 2,843 

18 Covid Recovery 0 1,249 1,249 0 1,249 

19 Building Control 33 25 58 0 58 

20 Football 3G Pitch 75 25 100 0 100 

21 Special Expense Area Reserve 211 65 276 0 276 

   3,906 1,233 5,139 0 5,139 

22 
Total General Revenue 
Reserves 14,742 1,731 16,473 

 
(1,864) 

 
14,609 

         

23 Government Grants Received 870 206 1,076 (277) 799 

         

24  Working Balance* 2,010 (652) 1,358 (63) 1,295 

25  Total Revenue Reserves 17,622 1,285 18,907 (2,204) 16,703 

         

 Capital Reserve       

26 LAMS Reserve 18 0 18 0 18 

27 General Fund Capital Reserve 1,054 (758) 296 (22) 274 

28 
Useable Capital Receipts 
Reserve 2,318 (204) 2,114 

 
(1,132) 

 
982 

29 Total Capital Reserves 3,390 (962) 2,428 (1,154) 1,274 

         

30 Total General Fund Reserves 21,012 323 21,335 (3,358) 17,977 

*this is an estimated position and will be finalised when the statement of accounts are 

produced 

53



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix F 

 
 

Housing Revenue Account Summary 2020/21 

 

Description 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 
£’000 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

(less 
proposed 
Budget 

C/F) 
£’000 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn 
£’000 

2020/21 
Variance  
£’000 

Income         

Dwelling Rents (24,557) (24,557) (24,252) 305 

Non-Dwelling Rents (331) (331) (280) 51 

Charges for Services and Facilities (677) (677) (550) 127 

Other Income (72) (72) (24) 48 

Total Income (25,637) (25,637) (25,106) 531 

          

Expenditure       

Repairs and Maintenance  8,207    6,627  6,920 293 

Supervision and Management - General  1,931   1,931  2,116 185 

Supervision and Management - Special  1,223    1,083  1,038 (45) 

Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed 
Assets 

 3,609   3,609  3,700 91 

Debt Management Expenses  35   35  35 0 

Provision for bad debts  384   384  58 (326) 

Other Expenditure (Pension Deficit)**  322   322  0 (322) 

Housing Development  250   250  152 (98) 

Support recharge from General Fund  2,558   2,558  2,592 34 

Total Expenditure  18,519   16,799  16,611 (188) 
       

Net Cost of HRA Services (7,118) (8,838) (8,495) 343 

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,778 2,778 2,530 (248) 

Interest and Investment Income (253) (253) (252) 1 

Investment Property Inc & Exp* 0 0 (3) (3) 

Return on Pension Assets * 0 0 270 270 

Net (Gain)/loss on sale of HRA Assets * 0 0 (620) (620) 

Capital receipts pooling * 0 0 768 768 

IAS19* 0 0 (488) (488) 

HRA (Surplus)/Deficit (4,593) (6,313) (6,290) 23 

*Accounting adjustment reversed out on the HRA balance 
** Costs in relation to pension deficit are charged at service level 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

55



Explanation of significant variances £’000 

Dwelling rents: 

Reduction in income of £125k as no new build properties are expected to be 
completed this year.  

Increase in write offs due to non-collection of rent of £58k.  The write off level is in 
line with the current bad debt provision level that is set in the HRA financial 
business plan. 

Void rates are higher than budgeted due to restrictions on moving residence 
during lockdown.  Currently at 2% (budgeted at 1.5%) resulting in a £110k shortfall 
in rents. 

 

 

293 

 

Non- Dwelling rents: 

Income for garages has been reduced by £25k as a result of higher than budgeted 
voids 

 

Rental income from HRA shops of £21k are removed within the movement on the 
HRA balance 

 

25 

 

 

21 

Charges for Services and Facilities: 

Due to the closure of the communal rooms within the sheltered accommodation 
properties during lockdown, charges to residents and room hire income has  
reduced by £142k. 

 

Creation of additional Homelessness units in order to comply with Covid-19 
requirements has provided an increase of service charges of £22k.  (These are 
partially offset by the increased charges in managing these units) 

 

 

142 

 

 

 

(22) 

Repairs & Maintenance: 
Pension costs of £448k for accounting entry IAS19 (employee pension) are 
included. These costs are removed within the movement on the HRA balance. 
 

Due to Covid-19, there has been a delay in repairs to council houses where 
access is necessary. 

 

448 

 

 

(190) 

Supervision & Management – General: 
Pension costs of £159k for accounting entry IAS19 (employee pension) are 
included. These costs are removed within the movement on the HRA balance. 
 

 

159 

Housing Delivery:  

Following the cessation of the HomesSK as of October 2020, no further costs 
were incurred resulting in an under spend of (£98k)  

 

 

(98) 

Bad Debts: 

Due to the suspension of recovery action including courts not sitting during 
2020/21, bad debts have not been at the budgeted level. Courts have resumed in 
2021/22.  

 

 

(326) 

 
 
 
 

56



Appendix G 

 
HRA Capital Programme Summary 2020/21  
 

Capital Scheme 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current   
Budget 

2020/21 
Amended 
Budget 
less C/F 

approved 
by 

Council 
March 
2021 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn  

2020/21 
Variance  

 
 

Variance comments 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  

Central Heating and Ventilation 1,900 1,445 786 (659) 

Works restarted in July but further delayed with the 

additional Covid-19 restrictions. Communal scheme 

works on hold pending full review of the specific 

requirements – A budget carry forward of £455k 

has been requested and subsequently approved by 

Council as part of the annual Budget report 

CCTV – HRA 30 0 0 0  

Housing System 0 0 0 0  

Repairs Vehicles 146 146 160 14  

Tunstall System Upgrade 125 125 0 (125) 
Personal Alarm upgrade programme to commence 

in 2021/22 so a budget carry forward of £125k is 

proposed 

Communal Rooms 10 10 14 4  

Replacement Door Programme 80 62 58 (4)  

57



Housing Growth 12,800 12,450 472 (11,978) 

New contract works now due to commence in 

2021/22 - Full programme of delivery presented to 

Governance and Audit Committee in November 

2020. 

Kitchens & Bathrooms 1,000 555 464 (91) 

Works commenced in July but now delayed with 

the additional Covid-19 restrictions. A budget carry 

forward of £445k has been requested and 

subsequently approved by Council as part of the 

annual Budget report 

Roofing 1,200 1,200 1,182 (18)  

Electrical Rewires 225 75 26 (49) 
Scheme of planned works is to continue in 2021/22. 

A further budget carry forward of £49k is proposed 

Sewage Maintenance 100 100 5 (95) Costs for works significantly less than expected. 

Total 17,616 16,168 3,167 (13,001)  

 

58



Appendix H 

 
2020/21 Budget Carry Forwards – HRA Revenue 

 

Project 

Budget 
Carry 

Forward 

£’000 

Funding Commentary 

Funding of 
Communal rooms 
refurbishment 

140 Underspends 
2020/21 

Works put on hold in 
2020/21 due to Covid-
19. Refurbishments to 
recommence 2021/22 

Funding of 
compliance software 
procurement 

50 Underspends 
2020/21 

System software build 
commenced in Q4 
2020/21 with build 
continuing into Q1 & 
Q2  2021/22. Therefore 
only partial build 
invoiced for in 20/21 and 
carry forward required 
for remainder of budget 

Funding of Electrical 
testing and works 
procurement 

750 Underspends 
2020/21 

Approved by Cabinet 16 
March 2021 

Funding of Stock 
condition surveys 

780 HRA 
Improvement 
Reserve 

Approved by Cabinet 12 
January 2021  

Total 1,720   

 
2020/21 Budget Carry Forwards – HRA Capital 

 

Project Budget 
Carry 

Forward 

£’000 

Funding Commentary 

Tunstall System Upgrade 125 Major Repairs 
Reserve 

Works to be 
undertaken in 2021/22 

Electrical Rewires 49 Major Repairs 
Reserve 

The remaining carry 
forward of the 
approved £225k 

Total 174   

 
 
 

59



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX I 
Reserves – HRA 2020/21 
 

  

Description 

Actual 
Balance 
as at 31 
March 
2020 
£’000 

Provisional 
movement 

£’000 

Provisional 
Balance 

as at 
31 March 

2021 
£’000 

Reserve 
Use 
Committed 
2020-21 
 
£’000 

TOTAL 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

 Revenue Reserve          

1 
Service Specific Funds 
(Pension) 261 (261) 0 

 
0 

 
0 

2 
HRA Improvement 
Reserve 656 1,350 2,006 

(1,300) 706 

3 Loan Repayment Reserve 1,350 (1,350) 0 0 0 

4 
Property Development 
Reserve 14,722 (1,200) 13,522 

0 13,522 

5 
Residents Involvement 
Reserve 30 0 30 

0 30 

6 Working Balance* 1,560 775 2,335 0 2,335 

7 
Total HRA Revenue 
Reserves 18,579 (686) 17,893 

(1,300) 16,593 

 HRA Capital Reserve      

8 
HRA Capital Receipts 
Reserve 7,260 797 8,057 

(350) 7,707 

9 Major Repairs Reserve 14,293 3,608 17,901 (1,437) 16,464 

10 
Total HRA Capital 
Reserves 21,553 4,405 25,958 

(1,787) 24,171 

       

11 Total HRA Reserves 40,132 3,719 43,851 (3,087) 40,764 

 

*this is an estimated position and will be finalised when the statement of accounts 

are produced 

 

61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

29 June 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

         
  

Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2022/23 

This report reviews the Council’s Local Council Tax Support scheme in advance of the 2022/23 
financial year and seeks comments from this Committee regarding potential changes to the 
scheme for public consultation. 

 

Report Author 

Claire Moses, Head of Revenues and Benefits 

 
01476 406210 ext 6484 

 claire.moses@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Key All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance & ICT  16 June 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 17 June 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

17 June 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. The Finance, Economic Development, Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is asked to comment on the current scheme and put forward any 
proposed changes for financial modelling. 

2. Agree to recommend to Cabinet the continuation in 2022/23 of the Discretionary 
Payment scheme of £30,000. 

3. Agree that the financial modelling arising from any proposed changes be 
presented back to the Committee for further consideration on 20 July 2021. 

63

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The Council Tax Benefit system was abolished on 31 March 2013 and replaced by the 

Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTSS).  This scheme can be determined locally by 

the Billing Authority having had due consultation with precepting authorities, key 

stakeholders and residents.  There are currently 8,180 residents claiming Council Tax 

Support in the South Kesteven District. 3,243 are pensioners who are protected under the 

legislation and receive Council Tax support as prescribed by the Government (broadly 

similar to the level of Council Tax Benefit).  It is the 4,937 working age claimants where a 

local scheme can be determined which can change the level of support provided. 

1.2 The Council agreed to a LCTSS which came into effect on 1 April 2013.  Our scheme 

currently provides 80% for working age claimants. 

1.3 The proposed scheme must go through certain steps to comply with the provisions stated 

in the Local Government Finance Act 2012 before it can be adopted by this Council as a 

Billing Authority: - 

Before making a scheme, the authority must (in the following order): - 

(a)consult any major precepting authority which ha power to issue a precept to it; 

(b)publish a draft scheme in such a manger as it thinks fit; and 

(c)consult such other persons as it considers are likely to have an interest in the 

operation of the scheme 

1.4 Any scheme design has a wide-ranging set of competing and sometimes, conflicting 

objectives that need to be considered.  These can be listed as (in no particular order): - 

- National welfare benefits 

- Council budget capacity 

- Council tax collection rates 

- Economy 

- Demographics 

- Caseload (need for support) 

- Council objectives 

- Other Council comparisons 

1.5 Given the current operating context, it will be problematic to fundamentally re-assess any 

Council Tax scheme due to the volatility that is impacting on a number of the objectives 

listed above 

 

Impacts of Covid 

1.6 Covid-19 has had an impact on the amount of LCTSS awarded, with significant increases 

in caseload and cost of the scheme – this is detailed further within this section of the 

report. 

1.7 The caseload increase is a direct result of changes to the economic climate, with existing 

customers requiring more support and new customers making claims for Universal Credit, 

and in-turn Council Tax Support claims.  Prior to Covid-19, the Department for Work and 

64



 

 
 

Pensions’ intention was to migrate existing customers onto Universal Credit via a 

managed process.  Covid-19 has resulted in this process being fast-tracked and has seen 

a significant increase in claims.   

1.8 The Council has also ensured that those customers who have been affected by Covid and 

therefore in financial difficulties, have had the opportunity to make a claim for Council Tax 

Support. 

1.9 For 2020/21, the cost of the scheme was £7,204,780.  This is an increase from 

£6,505,192 at the same point in 2019.  This is an increase of £699,588.  The Council’s 

share of the total cost for 2020/21 is £648,430 and £62,963 (of the increase) based on a 

9% share of the total cost. 

1.10 On 1 April 2021, the cost of the scheme increased to £7,452,505 as a result of the Council 

Tax increase. Since mid-May 2021, we have started to see a decrease in claim numbers 

and as a result a small decrease in the cost of the scheme.  As of 11 June 2021, the cost 

of the scheme is £7,421,858. This is a small reduction of £30,646 

1.11 The decrease in cost is difficult to accurately determine but will be in part as a result of the 

economy opening back up again.  However, this is only a minor decrease, and it will take 

much longer to return to pre-covid case levels. 

1.12 Further details of caseload increase are shown in the table and graph below: 

1st of month Working age Pension age Total 

September 2019 4,190 3,451 7,641 

December 2019 4,223 3,403 7,626 

March 2020 4,290 3,374 7,664 

June 2020 4,955 3,354 8,309 

September 2020 4,950 3,320 8,270 

December 2020 4,941 3,272 8,213 

January 2021 4,942 3,277 8,219 

February 2021 4,873 3,272 8,145 

March 2021 4,881 3,246 8,127 

April 2021 4,972 3,240 8,212 

May 2021 4,973 3,244 8,217 

June 2021* 4,936 3,244 8,180 

*As at 15 June 2021 

 

65



 

 
 

 

 

1.13 By using this data, officers are currently forecasting an ongoing small decrease to CTS 

caseload, but only if the current national Covid position remains relatively unchanged.  If 

further delays to the roadmap are announced, this is likely to have an impact on the 

economy, and as a result, another increase in caseload, rather than decrease. In addition, 

the furlough scheme is in place to the end of September 2021.  It is unknown whether this 

will be extended or remain in place, but with some changes. 

1.14 If the caseload were to increase during 2021/22, this will also impact the cost of the 

scheme for 2022/23, should the caseload level at current levels.   

South Kesteven District Councils Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

1.15 The Council’s local scheme has been updated with amendments since the introduction in 

April 2013 to maintain the link with Housing Benefit and the previous Council Tax Benefit 

scheme.   

1.16 The current scheme has the following restrictions for working age customers: - 

- Maximum entitlement capped to 80% 

1.17 The current scheme also has the following amendments to Council Tax technical restrictions 

for all Council Tax payers since April 2013: - 

- Introduction of additional 200% premium to empty properties over 10 years – total 

premium is 300% (total charge 400%); 

- Care leavers council tax exemption – 100% for those aged between 18 and 25; 

- Reduction for Special Constables who live in the district ; and 

- Unoccupied discount of 100% for the first month. 

  Council Tax Support options for 2022/23 

1.18 Based on the current core elements of the existing scheme, a range of different scenarios 

have been modelled, along with an assumed increased charge in Council Tax of 3%. 

These are summarised in Appendix 1, giving an indication of the potential cost to the 

Council. 

1.19 There are various changes which can be considered to the current scheme.  The changes 

can include the following:- 

7200

7400

7600

7800

8000

8200

8400

Se
p

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9

D
ec

-1
9

Ja
n

-2
0

Fe
b

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

A
p

r-
2

0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n

-2
0

Ju
l-

2
0

A
u

g-
2

0

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n

-2
1

Fe
b

-2
1

M
ar

-2
1

A
p

r-
2

1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
n

-2
1

Council Tax Support Caseload

66



 

 
 

Change 
ref 

Proposed Change Current position Considerations 

Change 1: Maximum award 
ranging from 70% 
to 100% 
(increments of 5% 
increase) 

Currently the maximum 
award is 80%.   

 

A reduction to the 
maximum award will 
result in a higher 
shortfall for the 
customer. 

An increase to the 
maximum award will 
result in a lower shortfall 
for the customer. 

Change 2 Reduction of the 
capital limit 

Capital limit is £16,000 This can be modelled in 
various increments. 

Change 3 Property banding 
cap 

Council Tax Support can 
be applied for regardless 
of the persons property 
band – from band A to 
Band H 

The higher the band, 
the more CTS is 
awarded.  This can be 
modelled to be capped 
at all bands from Band 
B to Band H – for 
example, if the cap was 
set at Band C, a 
customer in Band D and 
above will only have 
their CTS calculated on 
Band C liability. 

Change 4 Increase the 
minimum 
entitlement per 
week 

Any weekly value of CTS 
can be awarded 

This can be modelled in 
various increments. 

Results in a revised 
Council Tax bill being 
issued for a minimal 
amount of CTS award.  
Often, this is not cost 
effective. 

Change 5 Frequency of the 
re-assessment of 
Universal Credit to 
be reduced 

Universal Credit claims are 
re-assessed each time a 
notification is provided by 
the Department for Work 
and Pensions 

This results in a revised 
Council Tax bill being 
issued.  Furthermore, 
as each new bill is 
issued, there is a 
requirement to give 14 
days’ notice of the 
instalment that is due.  
This results in these 
bills being removed 
from the recovery 
process, with the 
ratepayer being faced 
with a balance at the 
end of the year they 

67



 

 
 

Change 
ref 

Proposed Change Current position Considerations 

may not have been 
aware of. 

Change 6 Impact of national 
incentives 

Does not apply National schemes 
introduced during a 
financial year will not 
take effect during the 
year.  They will be 
included in the new 
financial year scheme, if 
applicable. 

   

In deciding a scheme, it is possible to have a hybrid of various models as stated above.  

Officers are currently unable to provide financial modelling for these changes.  This will be 

provided at the 20 July 2021 meeting of this committee and will also include the potential 

cost of non-collection (a saving to the scheme cost may result in a higher cost of non-

collection). 

1.20 South Kesteven District Council also provide a Discretionary Payments (DP) scheme to 

assist persons who have applied for Council Tax Support and who are facing ‘exceptional 

hardship’.  A DP provides a further financial contribution where an applicant is in receipt of 

Council Tax Support but the level of support being provided does not meet their full 

Council tax liability.   

The Council is required to provide financial assistance to the most vulnerable residents, 

who have been disproportionately affected by the changes made in 2021 to the Council 

Tax Support Scheme.  Since April 2013, the Council agreed to introduce a Discretionary 

Payment scheme each year, in order to provide a safety net for customers, in receipt of 

Council Tax Support who were experiencing difficulty paying their council tax.  

Discretionary Payments fall within Section 13A(1) of the Local Government Finance Act 

1992 and forms part of the Council Tax Support Scheme. 

The budget for 2021/22 is £30,000 and the cost of a DP award is borne solely by South 

Kesteven District Council.  As at 11 June 2021, a total of £8,641 DP has been awarded. 

1.21 As a billing authority the Council can decide whether or not to amend core elements of its 

scheme each year.  A number of different models have been prepared and these are set 

out at Appendix 1 

1.22 There will be some technical changes that will still need to be applied to ensure that the 

Council’s scheme complied with the Prescribed Scheme Regulations (covering Universal 

Credit, premiums and discounts).  These details are still outstanding from the Ministry of 

Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG). 

1.23 Technical amendments to the scheme in relation to uprating income, applicable amounts, 

disregards and allowances are to be collated once statutory details have been released by 

the Secretary of State; it is intended that these will be circulated to Members for 

consideration at the Council meeting in January 2022.  There will be no change to the 

adopted policy in the way CTS is calculated for these areas.  Officers have considered if 

68



 

 
 

there is any need for any transitional arrangements to the revised scheme and concluded 

transitional arrangements are not needed for the 2022/13 scheme. 

1.24 In developing the modelling for each of the Council Tax Support Scheme options several 

assumptions have been made, as follows: 

• Uprating for social security benefits, based on the current national policy – however, 
this may change as a result of ongoing national budget statements.   

• As the Council and major preceptors are likely to set differing levels of Council Tax 
increases it creates a variety of modelling scenarios.  An overall increase on all 
elements of 3% has therefore been assumed for modelling purposes, this assumed 
increase is based on the Council Tax increase for 2022/23.  The final cost of the 
scheme will not be known until the overall Council Tax increase is confirmed. The 
modelling does not though take into consideration that the Council’s  percentage share 
of the overall cost of the scheme would slightly reduce if other preceptors increased 
their Band D by a greater percentage than the Council, this would in effect reduce the 
cost of the scheme to the Council. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The indicative timetable to approve any change to the new scheme is set out below and 

considers the existing calendar of meetings.  The full Council as Billing Authority needs to 

approve the scheme after consultation as outlined in paragraph 1.3. 

2.2 The timetable is as follows: - 

- 29 June 2021: Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee – review of this report and comments regarding potential 

changes for modelling and consultation. 

- 20 July 2021: Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee – review the outcome of financial modelling and comment 

on the consultation process. 

- August to October 2021: Public consultation and analysis of results.  The Council is 

required to review their current Council Tax Support scheme.  The proposals and 

recommendations will seek to ensure the Council has a robust review of its current 

scheme and understand the implications of adopting a new scheme. 

- 23 November 2021: Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – review the outcome of consultation and 

proposed scheme for 2022/23. 

- 7 December 2021: Cabinet – recommendation of scheme for 2022/23 for Council 

- 27 January 2022: Council – decision required: approval of final 2022/23 scheme 

for implementation from 1 April 2022.  The Local Government Finance Act 2012 

requires a full review of the scheme by the Billing Authority.  South Kesteven 

District Council will need to approve a new scheme after consultation by 31 January 

2022. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 Options are considered as set out in the report and supporting appendix.  

 

69



 

 
 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 The preferred option is currently unknown and will be determined at a later date once full 

consultation and analysis has taken place. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 These are set out in the report. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Officers will undertake modelling of the options detailed in paragraph 1.19 of this report 

and will return to this committee on 20 July 2021 with further information to be considered 

to start the consultation process as detailed in Section two.  

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 The actual cost of the discount scheme for 2022/23 will not be known for certain until the 

end of the financial year and will be dependent on the actual caseload in year as well as 

the levels of Council Tax set by the District Council and the major precepting authorities.   

7.2 An indicative range of costs based on various scenarios for 2022/23 will be provided in the 

next report to this committee on 20 July 2021. 

7.3 The estimated cost of the scheme, based on current caseload, is taken into consideration 

when calculating the Council’s tax base for the financial year and will impact on the 

estimated Council Tax yield for the year.  Any difference in the actual cost of the discount 

scheme to that estimated in the tax base calculation will be accounted for within the 

Collection Fund and will be considered when future years surpluses or deficits are 

declared.   

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance  

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) (England) Regulations 2012, laid 

before Parliament on 22nd November 2012, set out the regulations for a default scheme 

and this was adopted by the Council subject to local policy needs in January 2013.  The 

Secretary of State has issued amendment regulations setting out some changes that must 

be adopted by the Council for pensioners and the Council had also decided in 2013 to 

keep the schemes allowances and premiums in line with those for Housing Benefit for 

working age claimants.  These are incorporated into amendments to the local scheme for 

approval by the Council. 

8.2 The regulations for the scheme proposed to be adopted are to be collated and made 

available for Council in January 2022. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Monitoring Officer 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 This will be undertaken as part of the consultation process, dependent upon the options 

recommended for consultation.  It is expected that any changes to the current scheme that 

reduce the current maximum cap of 80% will have an adverse impact on specific 

household income. 

 

70



 

 
 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The Council, along with the other preceptors, bears the risk of the cost of the Council Tax 

Support scheme should caseload increase cause the cost to increase more than 

predicted. 

10.2 Any revisions to the scheme must be approved by 31 January 2022. 

10.3 The scheme cannot be changed mid-year and therefore it is vital the correct scheme is in 

place. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 None 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 None 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix 1 – Financial modelling 

15.2 Appendix 2 – Lincolnshire Councils LCTS Schemes for 2021/22 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

N/a 

Previously Considered by:  N/a 

Final Decision date   31 January 2022 

 

71



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1: June 2021 – Council Tax Support 2022/23 scheme 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Option 1: Council Tax Support Scheme – current scheme proposal as at 11 June 2021 
 
 

Option 1: No change to core scheme – 3% 
Council Tax increase and variable caseload 
increase 

Estimated 
Total Spend 

South 
Kesteven 

Spend – 9% 

Difference to 
current cost at 
(£7,421,858) – 
saving / (cost) 

Amount expected to 
be collected using 
collection figure of 

(%) 
 

1% caseload increase 
 

7,690,381 692,134 (268,523)  
Figure will be 
provided once 

financial modelling 
has taken place 

2% caseload increase 
 

7,736,248 696,262 (314,390) 

3% caseload increase 
 

7,782,115 700,390 (360,257) 

 

Option 2: No change to core scheme – 3% 
Council Tax increase and variable caseload 
decrease 

Estimated 
Total Spend 

South 
Kesteven 

Spend – 9% 

Difference to 
current cost at 
(£7,421,858) – 
saving / (cost) 

Amount expected to 
be collected using 
collection figure of 

(%) 
 

1% caseload decrease 
 

7,598,645 683,878 (176,788)  
Figure will be 
provided once 

financial modelling 
has taken place 

2% caseload decrease 
 

7,552,780 679,750 (130,921) 

3% caseload decrease 
 

7,506,912 675,622 (85,054) 

 

73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2: Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2021/22 – Lincolnshire Authorities 
 

Local Authority Scheme information 
 

Boston Borough Council • Award up to 75% of the liability 

• Property cap at Band D (Band E-H awards are capped at Band D level) 

•  Second adult rebate removed 

City of Lincoln Council • Award up to 100% of the liability 

• Property cap at Band B (Band C-H awards are capped at Band B level) 

• Minimum entitlement of £2.00 per week 

• Capital capped at £8,000 

• Backdating restricted to 1 month 

• Vulnerable scheme covers anyone receiving War Pension, War Widows Pension, Employment 
Support Allowance, Personal Independence Payment or Carers Allowance and/or qualify for a 
disability premium, disabled earnings disregard or carers premium. 

East Lindsey District 
Council 

• Award up to 75% of liability 

• Property cap at Band D (Band E-H awards are capped at Band D level) 

• Removal of second adult rebate 

• Backdating restricted to 3 months 

• Vulnerable scheme covers anyone receiving War Pension, War Widows Pension, Employment 
Support Allowance, Personal Independence Payment or Carers Allowance and/or qualify for a 
disability premium, disabled earnings disregard or carers premium. 

• Original evidence and information not required, and evidence submitted by email can be 
accepted 

• Where a change to the Universal Credit (UC) award results in the cessation of CTS and 
following UC award results in reinstatement to CTS, CTS can be reinstated from the original nil 
entitlement date of the period of nil entitlement does not exceed six weeks 

• New claim for Universal Credit treated as an intention to claim CTS.  The first payment of UC, 
when received, is treated as the new claim for CTS 

North Kesteven District 
Council 

• Award up to 90% of the liability 

• Property cap at Band D (Band E-H awards are capped at Band D level) 

• Minimum entitlement of £3.50 per week 

• Capital capped at £8,000 

75



Appendix 2: Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2021/22 – Lincolnshire Authorities 
 

• Taper rate of 30% (30p of every £1 income is used within the assessment) 

• Local income disregards (vary from £10 to £25) 

• Local non dependant deductions for pension age 

• Self employed income is assessed using 16 hours are minimum wage for first year of trading 

• Backdating restricted to 1 month 

• Second adult rebate for pensioner or vulnerable scheme only 

• Vulnerable scheme covers anyone receiving War Pension, War Widows Pension, Employment 
Support Allowance, Personal Independence Payment or Carers Allowance and/or qualify for a 
disability premium, disabled earnings disregard or carers premium. 

South Holland District 
Council 

• Award up to 70% of liability 

• Property cap at Band D (Band E-H awards are capped at Band D level) 

• Minimum entitlement of £5.00 per week 

• Upper capital limit of £8,000 

• Lower capital threshold of £3,000 – tariff income from capital will be treated in the normal way 
of £1 for every £250.00 of capital over the threshold 

• Backdating restricted to 3 months 

• Vulnerable scheme covers anyone receiving War Pension, War Widows Pension, Employment 
Support Allowance, Personal Independence Payment or Carers Allowance and/or qualify for a 
disability premium, disabled earnings disregard or carers premium. 

• Original evidence and information not required, and evidence submitted by email can be 
accepted 

• Where a change to the Universal Credit (UC) award results in the cessation of CTS and 
following UC award results in reinstatement to CTS, CTS can be reinstated from the original nil 
entitlement date of the period of nil entitlement does not exceed six weeks 

• New claim for Universal Credit treated as an intention to claim CTS.  The first payment of UC, 
when received, is treated as the new claim for CTS 

South Kesteven District 
Council 

• Award up to 80% of the liability 

• Backdating restricted to 6 months 

• Vulnerable scheme covers anyone receiving War Pension, War Widows Pension, Employment 
Support Allowance, Personal Independence Payment or Carers Allowance and/or qualify for a 
disability premium, disabled earnings disregard or carers premium. 

76



Appendix 2: Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2021/22 – Lincolnshire Authorities 
 

 

West Lindsey District 
Council 

• Award up to 90% of the liability 

• Property cap at Band E (Band F-H awards are capped at Band E level) 

• Minimum entitlement of £3.50 per week 

• Universal Credit cases are reviewed every 4 months (calculating on the fourth month, unless 
there has been a significant change, which results in immediate calculation, or on the request 
of the customer)  

• Vulnerable scheme covers anyone receiving Employment Support Allowance, Personal 
Independence Payment or Carers Allowance. 

 

77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

29 June 2021 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2020/21 

This report outlines South Kesteven District Councils performance against the Corporate Plan Key 
Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2020/21. 

 

 

Report Author 

Ben Russell, Performance Lead 

 
01476 406394 

 Ben.Russell@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive 10 June 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 15 June 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 17 June 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the contents of the 2020/21 performance report. 

2. Supports amending the 2021/22 target for “Delivery of growth of our economy, 
Action 4 – number of businesses supported” to 60. 

79

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The South Kesteven Corporate Plan 2020-23 was approved by Council on 1 October 

2020. The Corporate Plan sets out the strategic vision and key priorities of the Council.  

The Corporate Plan underpins the Council’s strategic activity and provides the 

performance framework for managing the delivery of the actions and priorities in the Plan. 

It is good practice for a public sector organisation seeking to deliver a wide set of aims and 

objectives to set out a Corporate Plan and regularly review the activity and achievements 

against it. 

1.2 It was agreed by Council that actions, key performance indicators (KPIs) and targets 

would be developed by the relevant overview and scrutiny committee, which would retain 

oversight of the performance management arrangements at a strategic level. These 

actions and indicators were presented to this committee and agreed on 23 February 2020. 

1.3 The summary presented uses the most recent data available relevant to the actions and 

KPIs for the 2020/21 period. Information may not be available for all performance 

measures, due to how they are collected, or the planned stages of the projects involved. 

Explanations are provided as appropriate throughout the summary. 

1.4 This is the first presentation of the Corporate Plan performance report and is considered a 

work in progress as the Council seeks to improve the ways in which progress against the 

corporate objectives are monitored. Members are however invited to make suggestions as 

to any additional information which would support their monitoring of performance in these 

areas. 

1.5 Appendix 1 outlines the overall performance against the 18 actions, as well as specific 

performance against the 43 sub measures contained within those. Specific commentary is 

provided for each action, but the summary is as follows:  

1. 10 of the actions are rated Green. These are actions which are on target as planned.  

2. 6 Actions are rated as Amber, these are those off target by less than 10% or where 

milestone achievement is delayed but with resolution in place to be achieved within a 

reasonable timeframe.  

3. 1 action is rated Red. These are those falling significantly below target or overdue 

with no specific resolution date planned. 

4. 1 action has no status, this is due to limited or out of date information or where a 

measure is not due for collection in the reporting period.  

1.6 Services have recommended the following adjustments to KPIs and targets for the coming 

financial year. 

1. Revise 2021 target for “Delivery of growth of our economy, Action 6 – number of 

businesses supported” to 60 from 80. This is recommended due to the more 

intensive support required buy businesses in the Covid-19 recovery period. 

1.7 Future presentations of the report will include direction of travel (DoT) indicators. These 

have been included in this presentation but remain blank as this is the first presentation of 

the report. 

 

 

80



 

 
 

2 Operational Performance monitoring next steps. 

2.1 Following the 2021 elections, a date will be confirmed for the performance workshop 

where members will have opportunity to review the regular committee dashboards which 

support scrutiny of the Councils operational performance alongside the Corporate Plan 

Key Performance Indicators. 

3 Financial Implications  

3.1 The financial considerations where appropriate are referenced throughout this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

4 Legal and Governance Implications  

4.1 Regular reporting on agreed performance dashboards is to be welcomed from a 

governance point of view, as it provides a transparent mechanism for reporting on 

performance. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

5 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

5.1 There are no issues relating to equality and diversity or safeguarding resulting from this 

report. Any issues that do arise relating to individual items will be addressed as required. 

6 Risk and Mitigation 

6.1 No significant risks have been identified. 

7 Community Safety Implications  

7.1 No significant implications have been identified. 

8 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

8.1 The contents of this report do not have a direct impact on the council’s carbon emissions 

or the carbon emissions of the wider district. More detailed information on carbon impact 

of individual projects or activities are outlined within the relevant project documentation or 

service plans. 

9 Background Papers 

9.1 Agenda and Minutes from the Council meeting held 01 October 2020 (Item 27 – South 

Kesteven District Council Corporate Plan) 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=4037&Ver=

4  

9.2 Agenda and action notes from the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 23 February 2021 (Item 35 - 

Corporate Plan 2020-23 - Key Performance Indicators and Targets) 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=4015   

10 Appendices 

10.1 Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 

 

81

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=4037&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=4037&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=4015


 

 
 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

N/A 

Previously Considered by: Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

23 February 2021 

Final Decision date   N/A 

 

82



Appendix 1 
Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 

Priority Delivery of Growth of Our Economy No. 1 Status 

Action : Delivery of the St Martins Park development scheme in Stamford.   

Responsible Post :  Director of Growth and Culture 

What does Success Look Like: Secure the redevelopment of the Cummins site to develop new employment opportunities and much 

needed for homes for Stamford in a high-quality setting 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Number of jobs created 0 (Planned to be achieved from 2022) 0 -   

Brownfield land brought back into use Sale of land to complete by April 2021 N -   

Number of dwellings 0 (Planned to be achieved from 2022) 0 -   

Financial return to Council Commercially Confidential – to be shared in private session 

at the relevant time. 

N/A - 
 

Commentary : The Council owns the 15 acre former Cummins factory site off Barnack Rd, Stamford. The adjacent landowners are working 

with the Council to bring forward a 20 acre site so that the combined site can be developed as a mixed use of residential, retirement and 

commercial. The outline planning application is awaiting determination from the Local Planning Authority and the whole site will be developed 

by three separate developers once the existing former Cummins factory has been demolished and other vendors works have been completed. 

Planning application determination enabling the sale of land is anticipated June/July 2021, which represents a short delay from the target of 

April 2021. 
 

Priority Delivery of Growth of Our Economy No. 2 Status 

Action : Regeneration of Grantham town centre, supported by the Future High Street (FHSF) bid and delivery of the Heritage 

Action Zone programme (HAZ). 

  

Responsible Post : Director of Growth and Culture 

What does Success Look Like: Delivery of approved HAZ scheme in partnership with Historic England; secure Future High Streets 

Funding 

83



Appendix 1 
Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

HAZ: amount of public sector grant spent Grant spend identified within Year 1 of HAZ programme 

design: £150,400. 

Following Treasury spend profile guidance 

£126,088 -   

HAZ: amount of private sector investment 

leveraged 

£15,000. Based on Minimum 20% contribution to building 

regeneration grant  

£9,220 -   

HAZ: number of buildings improved 1 - 'Key building project ' as outlined in HAZ programme 

design ( 71 High Street)  

1 -   

FHSF: amount of FHSF secured Secure funding of up to £5.58 m from Government  5,560,000 -   

FHSF: amount of public realm improved Working towards 13,100 sqm of public realm created or 

improved - improvements to the Market Place and Station 

Road Approach  

Y -   

FHSF: amount of vacant space converted Identification of a total of 22 upper floor conversion with 

property owners and co-funders 

Y -   

Commentary : £11,726 was spent in the main High Street Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) programme and an additional £8825 through the 

Cultural Programme Pilot Grant. While private sector investment sits under target, additional contributions are expected over the life of the 

project, so the rating is expected to improve over time. 

 

£5.56 Million of Future High Street Funding has been secured to March 2024. Planned spend of this is split into 3 distinct projects, 2 of these - 

Station Approach and Market Place have public realm enhancements identified within the project delivery, the third project is the conversion of 

22 upper floor units into residential dwellings.  

 

Priority Delivery of Growth of Our Economy No. 3 Status 

Action : Identify funding & other opportunities to support the development of the town centres of Bourne, The Deepings and 

Stamford, and apply lessons learnt from the Future High Street Fund & other initiatives.  

  

Responsible Post : Director of Growth and Culture 

84



Appendix 1 
What does Success Look Like: Historic and Regeneration funding secured for locally supported, targeted, schemes in The 

Deepings, Bourne and Stamford. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Amount of regeneration funding secured 

for each town 

Work with external partners to identify other key priorities for 

funding in SK. 

N/A -  

Amount of historic funding secured for 

each town 

Work with external partners to identify other key priorities for 

funding in SK. 

N/A -  

Commentary: At the present time there are no funding opportunities available to support this priority. However taking the lessons learnt and 

delivery of both the Grantham FHSF and HAZ we will be in a strong position going forward to apply for funding in the other three towns once 

funding schemes have been launched. 
 

Priority Delivery of Growth of Our Economy No. 4 Status 

Action : Develop a package of measures to support the recovery of the local economy to safeguard local jobs wherever possible.   

Responsible Post : Director of Growth and Culture 

What does Success Look Like: One Team approach across the Council, InvestSK and other public and private sector agencies to 

provide South Kesteven's businesses with accessible and relevant support. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Number of businesses supported 40 2,700 - 
 

Number of partners/agencies engaged Scope out a Local Economic Forum of all key local partners 

and agencies relevant to business support, skills and 

economic growth 

N/A - 
 

Number of partners/agencies engaged 50 (following set up of Local Economic Forum) N/A - 
 

Commentary : Over the period of the Covid-19 pandemic we have supported over 2,700 businesses in  the District to secure nearly £50m of 

Government grant support. This has been an ongoing process throughout the periods of lockdown and tiering. Furthermore, we have brought 

forward a number of local discretionary schemes to support those businesses not eligible for the mainstream grants programmes. Due to 

85



Appendix 1 
Covid-19 the service has significantly exceeded the target of businesses supported in 2021. The longer-term economic impact is unknown, but 

indications are that more intense support will be required in the post pandemic recovery period. As a result, It is recommended that the target 

for 2021/22 should be set at 60. 

The majority of partner engagement over the last 12 months has been to work with those supporting the Covid-19 business support process. In 

the main this has involved regular engagement with LCC and all other districts in Lincolnshire. We have also engaged at central government 

level with the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy and the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government. 

Locally we have worked with business support and start up providers, these in the main being The Lincolnshire Growth Hub and Nottingham 

Business Venture. Other partners we have engaged with being The Federation of Small Businesses, Lincoln University, Grantham College and 

the 4 business representative groups in the District. 

With the focus on supporting businesses through the pandemic it is not possible to put an exact figure on the number of jobs safeguarded 

however it is clear that without support from SKDC many businesses would not have been able to continue trading and jobs would have been 

lost. 
 

Priority Delivery of Growth of Our Economy No. 5 Status 

Action : Review the scope and focus of InvestSK to maximise the support to local businesses and attract inward investment.   

Responsible Post : Director of Growth and Culture 

What does Success Look Like: Restructure of InvestSK to focus on economic support. Revised business plan. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Proportion of ISK funding allocation 

focused on business support 

Minimum of 50% of funding 71.15% -   

Amount of inward investment attracted into 

the district 

To have an offer fully supported by local land owners and 

developers and recognised by the Department for 

International Trade and Team Lincolnshire 

N/A -  

Commentary : The revised InvestSK Business Plan September 2020 clearly articulated the emphasis of business support as the primary 

activity of InvestSK. The restructure that sat alongside the plan shows the majority of funding allocated is for the delivery of business support, 

advice and guidance. Going forward this will become ever more obvious as programme funding reduces, and more resource is directly 

targeted at supporting business attraction, start-up and growth. 

Inward Investment activity and promotion of the District has been limited due to the Covid-19 pandemic. That said we continue to liaise with the 

86



Appendix 1 
key developers responsible for bringing land forward and in particular around Spitalgate level and the unlocking of this site resulting from the 

Grantham Southern Relief Road. 
 

Priority Delivery of Growth of Our Economy No. 6 Status 

Action : Continue to attract investment and encourage diverse businesses to the District and ensure appropriate land and 

property is available. 

  

Responsible Post : Director of Growth and Culture 

What does Success Look Like: New businesses attracted to the district utilising existing building stock and bringing allocated 

employment land to market 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Increase in Economic Value (GVA) of the 

district 

Maintain 2% increase year on year £2681 Million 

(2018) 

- 
 

Amount of land available for employment 

use (and amount developed) 

Baseline of 20.2ha new allocated employment land 

(B1/B2/B8) identified in the Local Plan 

Y  - 
 

Commentary : GVA data is supplied, 3 years in arrears, by the Office of National Statistics. 2018 is the latest data available with further 

information expected for 2019 by June 2021 and therefore will be reported as part of the next cycle. 

https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/grossvalueaddedgva/datasets/regionalgrossvalueaddedbalancedlocalauthoritiesbynuts1region 

 

20.2ha of land has been newly allocated for employment purposes, as outlined in Policy E3 of the Local Plan.  

 

Priority Delivery of Growth of Our Economy No. 7 Status 

Action : Work with the education providers to increase opportunities for local learning and apprenticeships in the District.   

Responsible Post : Director of Growth and Culture 

What does Success Look Like: Opening of University Centre in Grantham with strong through-put of learners. Supporting an 

increase in new learners and apprenticeships in the Council and across the district. 

87



Appendix 1 
Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Number of training courses (Higher 

Education (HE), Further Education (FE) 

and vocational) offered in the district 

Work with FE/HE providers to establish targets N/A -  

Number of residents taking new training 

courses (within and outside the district) 

Additional 5% per annum increase in learner numbers at L2 

and above 

N/A -  

Number of courses (and students) at new 

University Centre 

60 learners accessing skills provision N/A -  

Number of apprenticeships provided by the 

Council 

10 new apprenticeships provided by the Council per annum 19 (8 new) -  

Commentary : Over the past year with varying degrees of Lockdown due to COVID, the University Centre is yet to open the doors officially for 

students. The university transitioned courses online and a smaller cohort has been recruited onto the most recent set of classes. A wider 

conversation is being undertaken which examines how the centre can now deliver responsively for the business community in light of the 

pandemic and the ripple effects from these difficult times. The Council has maintained continuous contact with the Greater Lincolnshire Local 

Enterprise Partnership regarding outputs and have received leeway to realign delivery of outputs as we head into a recovery focused future. 

Course delivery discussions are being finalised regarding the achievement levels of each item of learning delivered at the centre. 

As of 31 March 2021 SKDC had 19 individuals carrying out apprenticeships. 8 of these were new apprenticeships that had started during the 

financial year 2020/21. In addition to these figures 2 employees have been identified as suitable for undertaking a Town Planning degree 

apprenticeship in 2021/22 and are currently undertaking a course at the Open University to ensure they have the credits needed to take the 

apprenticeship. 

Working with managers up to 8 apprenticeship opportunities have been potentially identified by HR for 2021/22, these opportunities will 

continue to be explored. 
 

Priority Delivery of Growth of Our Economy No. 8 Status 

Action : In partnership with LCC bring forward housing and employment opportunities linked to the delivery of the Grantham 

Southern Relief Road.  

  

Responsible Post : Director of Growth and Culture 

88



Appendix 1 
What does Success Look Like: Opening of Grantham Southern Relief Road and considered and comprehensive development of 

residential and commercial opportunities unlocked by the relief road. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Opening of relief road Relief Road in progress Y - 
 

Amount of housing and employment land 

developed 

Relief Road in progress Y - 
 

Commentary : Phase 1 of the relief road was completed in 2016. Phase 2 is due for completion in September 2021, with final completion of 

stage 3 planned for May 2023. The relief road is being forward funded by Lincolnshire County Council, with financial contributions recouped via 

section 106 agreements from developments that are dependent on it. It will unlock the development of a large area of land to the south of 

Grantham including Spitalgate Heath Garden Village (SHGV) c3700 dwellings, the redevelopment of Prince William of Gloucester Barracks 

(PWGB) - c4000 dwellings, the Grantham Designer Outlet Village (GDOV) and extensive commercial/employment development. The GDOV 

already has planning permission. A planning application for SHGV is currently under consideration whilst the promoters of PWGB are intending 

to submit a planning application in October 2021. Development of the Grantham North West Quadrant sustainable urban extension is also to a 

large extent dependent on the relief road with early phases already completed or with planning permission granted. 
 

Priority Delivery of Growth of Our Economy No. 10 Status 

Action : Support the roll out of improved broadband and other key infrastructure to support local businesses and rural areas.   

Responsible Post : Director of Growth and Culture 

What does Success Look Like: Increased broadband coverage across the district 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Broadband coverage across the district 97% 96.44%  - 
 

Average line speed 20mbps 34.1 mbps  - 
 

Commentary : Advocating on behalf of the District for improvements to broadband speed and coverage will be a focus for the incoming 

Director of Growth and Culture, through 2021 and beyond. 

The coverage and speed estimates above are provided by thinkbroadband and are compiled using domestic and business customer reports 

89



Appendix 1 
(Data available at https://labs.thinkbroadband.com/local/E07000141). Broadband coverage is defined by those with access to "super-fast" 

broadband defined by the UK government as speeds in excess of 24mbps.  
 

Priority A Clean and Sustainable Environment No. 9 Status 

Action : Build a new, modern depot which is fit for the future.   

Responsible Post : Director of Commercial and Operations 

What does Success Look Like: Delivery of a new depot. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Budget & programme approval. Develop financial case to secure funding and agree 

programme 

Y  - 
 

Commentary : Budget for the acquisition of land was agreed Council in November 2020  and the purchase of a site for the new depot was 

completed on 9th April 2021.The next stage is specification and detailed design work for the depot which is anticipated to be presented to 

Council in Autumn 2021 for approval and budget. 

 
  

Priority A High Performing Council No. 1 Status 

Action : Implement the Covid-19 Recovery Plan.   

Responsible Post : Chief Executive  

What does Success Look Like: Agree Covid recovery plan once 'response' phase is finished 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Implement actions from recovery plan Interim recovery plan in place June 2020. Y  - 
 

Commentary : The Covid recovery action log indicates 217 actions have been completed as part of the South Kesteven response to the 

pandemic covering a broad range of areas covering the five priority areas within the Corporate Plan and include areas such as the re-

instatement of services, re-instatement of the High Street and effective communication with residents, businesses, partners and staff. 

90



Appendix 1 
SKDC is contributing to the wider County and Lincolnshire Resilience Forum roadmap for recovery and will refresh the SKDC recovery plan 

later in 2021. 

 

Priority A High Performing Council No. 2 Status 

Action : Deliver a balanced, sustainable financial plan over the medium term.   

Responsible Post : Director of Finance  

What does Success Look Like: Development of a medium term balanced financial plan  

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Balanced financial plan without reliance of 

reserves 

Approval by Council on an annual basis.  Y  - 
 

Commentary : A balanced financial plan for 2021/22 was approved by full council on 1st March 2021.  
  

Priority A High Performing Council No. 6 Status 

Action : Develop and implement commercial and transformation strategies to deliver additional net revenue benefit.   

Responsible Post : Deputy Chief Executive 

What does Success Look Like: Agreed strategies and action plans for Commercial and Transformation activities, delivering a net 

revenue benefit. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

% shift in net position Service plans complete by March 2021 to identify and 

develop targets for future years 

Y  - 
 

Commentary : Service plans for each service (with the exception of two services with vacant posts at Head of Service level) have been 

developed for 2021/22 and approved by the Chief Executive setting out the financial and performance targets for the financial year 2021/22, 

which focus on the delivery of: 

91



Appendix 1 
      i) Corporate Plan: Actions and links to the service action plans (Golden thread) 

      ii) The budget for the financial year 
 

Priority A High Performing Council No. 8 Status 

Action : Support the implementation of an IT investment roadmap to align future solutions with the Councils ambitions.   

Responsible Post : Deputy Chief Executive 

What does Success Look Like: Agreed roadmap in place outlining the process for achieving modern, sustainable and reliable IT 

provision 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Agreed roadmap in place Roadmap in place N -  

Server downtime N/A N/A -  

Average ticket time N/A 70:10:43 -  

Projects delivered on budget N/A N/A -  

% reduction in IT cost (delivered through 

procurement) 

N/A N/A -  

Commentary: Road map has not been completed, specific definitions, measurement schemes and targets for the 4 measures within that will 

be confirmed by that process. 

Recruitment to key leadership roles is now complete and the development of the IT investment programme will be prioritised, so this is 

expected to be brought back ‘on track’ over the next quarter.  A fuller update, together with timescales and outputs will be provided as part of 

the next performance report. 
 

Priority A High Performing Council No. 10 Status 

Action : Deliver the ambitions of the Customer Experience Strategy.   

Responsible Post : Director of Commercial & Operations 

92



Appendix 1 
What does Success Look Like: Delivery of the Customer Experience Strategy 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Delivery of the Customer Experience 

Strategy 

Establish baseline N/A  - 
 

Commentary: A customer experience strategy was adopted in 2020/21. Following the experiences throughout the Covid-19 Pandemic, 

progress against this is now being evaluated. The strategy needs a full review based on the ‘Channel shift’ the Council experienced due to 

Covid-19, this will ensure that resources are committed to support customer needs. 
 

Priority A High Performing Council No. 11 Status 

Action : Maximise the value of the Councils own spend by using local suppliers wherever practical.   

Responsible Post : Director of Finance 

What does Success Look Like: Procurement activity incorporating the Council's approved contract procedure rules requirement of 

utilising local supply chains where possible  

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Measures to be developed in order to 

monitor procurement activity  

60%  54.33% - 
 

Commentary :  The updated Council Contract Procedure Rules requires that all procurement up to £50,000 must seek at least one bid from 

local suppliers.  Procurement activity over this threshold can also invite local bidders but it is not stated a requirement as local suppliers may 

not be able to provide the required work or services.  The Council will actively promote procurement activities with local suppliers to ensure 

they are notified when opportunities arise.  Of course, the Council must ensure VFM when awarding contracts and work and supporting 

evaluation criteria is designed to ensure this is achieved. 
 

Priority A High Performing Council No. 12 Status 

Action : Undertake an Asset Management Review.   

Responsible Post : Director of Housing and Property 

93



Appendix 1 
What does Success Look Like: Review of all of the Council's non-HRA assets in order to assist on a considered programme of 

disposal, investment and acquisition 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Review of Council's assets Complete Review N  - 
 

Financial return from property / asset 

disposals 

Annual review of surplus assets - c£500k disposal value N  - 
 

Commentary : Following significant changes to the property services team, resulting in the temporary loss of capacity, a full review has not yet 

been completed. However, the service has committed to completing this in draft form by the end of July 2021, hence the Amber rating.  The 

Asset Management Plan will be made available to the overview and scrutiny committee for their comments and input. 

Decisions to dispose of assets, including the sale of land at the Cattle Market in Stamford have been taken, which meet the Councils disposal 

target, however the indicator is rated Amber as the target was not achieved in 2020/21 as initially intended but the action will deliver this target 

in the early part of 2021/22. 

 

Priority Healthy and Strong Communities No. 1 Status 

Action : Invest in sustainable, high quality leisure facilities across the district.   

Responsible Post : Director of Growth and Culture 

What does Success Look Like: Agreement of a programme of new-build and refurbished leisure centres meeting the needs of the 

district. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved DoT Status 

Decision on leisure programme Phased programme of improvement in place for leisure 

centres.   

N  - 
 

Establish and successfully manage 

LeisureSK Ltd 

Successful transfer of leisure service to LesiureSK Ltd and 

adoption of business plan. 

Y  - 
 

94



Appendix 1 
Commentary : Leisure SK Ltd. took formal control of the Districts Leisure centres from the 1st January 2021. 

Work is ongoing to confirm the full programme of improvement works on leisure centres. A final decision is pending a full review of the financial 

viability of works to ensure long term sustainability of the programme - expected Summer 2021. 

 

95



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2021 - 2022 

Work Programme 
REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 

ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 
HISTORY DATE(S) 

CORPORATE/ 
PRIORITY 

29 June 2021 

Corporate Plan 
Performance 

To provide the Committee with an 
overview of the performance of the 
Council against the Corporate Plan 
and the agreed key performance 
indicators. 
Lead Officers: 
Ken Lyon (Assistant Chief 
Executive), Ben Russell 
(Performance Lead) 

To enable scrutiny and 
challenge around Council 
performance 

Quarterly Reporting Growth and our 
Economy, Housing the 
Meets the Needs of all 
Residents, Healthy 
and Strong 
Communities, Clean 
and Sustainable 
Environment, High 
Performing Council 

Progress on the 
new Complaints 
System 

To receive an update on progress 
made on a new Corporate 
Complaints System 
Lead Officer:  
Shahin Ismail (Monitoring 
Officer) 

Members to review and 
make recommendations 
where appropriate. 

Action agreed at the 
meeting held on 23 
February 2021. 

High Performing 
Council 

Provisional outturn 
report 2020/21 

Detail of the Council’s provisional 
outturn position for the financial 
year 2020/21. The report covers 
the following areas: 
 

• General Fund Revenue Budget 

• Housing Revenue Account 
Budget 

• Capital Programmes – General 
Fund and HRA 

Lead Officers: 

To review. Quarterly reporting High Performing 
Council 

97

A
genda Item

 10



 
 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

Claire Morgan (Senior 
Management Accountant) 
Richard Wyles (Interim Head of 
Finance, s151 Officer) 

Review of the 
Localised Council 
Tax support 
scheme  

Review the Council’s Local Council 
Tax Support scheme in advance of 
the 2022/23 financial year 
Lead Officer:  
Richard Wyles (Interim Head of 
Finance, s151 Officer) 

To seek comments from this 
Committee regarding 
potential changes to the 
scheme for public 
consultation. 

Requested by Richard 
Wyles (Interim Head of 
Finance, s151 Officer) – 
June 2021 

High Performing 
Council 

20 July 2021 

     

7 September 2021 

     

23 November 2021 

Rent Guarantee 
Scheme 

An update on the progress of the 
scheme 
Lead Officer: 
Andrew Cotton (Director for 
Growth and Property) 
 

To note the update Requested to be added 
the Work Programme at a 
mid-point in the Municipal 
Year - agreed by the 
Committee 23 February 
2021 

Housing the Meets the 
Needs of all Residents 

Invest to Save To provide information on Invest to 
Save 
Lead Officer: TBC 

To note Requested to be added 
the Work Programme at a 
mid-point in the Municipal 
Year - agreed by the 

Housing the Meets the 
Needs of all Residents 

98



 
 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

Committee 23 February 
2021 

15 February 2022 

Impact of Brexit A report on the impact Brexit has 
had on the Council and 
Community.  
Lead Officer: TBC 

Members to note. Requested at 23 
February meeting of the 
Committee. 

Growth and our 
Economy 

Impact of COVID-19 A report on the impact of COVID-
19 has had on the Council and 
Community.  
Lead Officer: TBC 

Members to note. Requested at 23 
February meeting of the 
Committee. 

Growth and our 
Economy 

3 May 2022 

     

 

 

 

Unscheduled Items 

• Transformation and Change 

• Delivery of affordable housing in the District. 

• Economic Development Strategy and role of InvestSK Ltd - SKDC Economic Development Strategy, the scope of Invest SK and 
how the Economic Development Strategy will be delivered.  

• Grantham Town Centre - Continuation of Joint Scrutiny of Grantham Town Centre - Consideration of business occupancy rates in 
Grantham, and business survival rates, with additional consideration to post COVID-19 recovery and the changing face of the high 
street.  
 

 

99



 
 

REMIT 
The remit of the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet 
Members to assist with the development of policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 

• Business rate relief 

• Business transformation 

• Car parks, bus stations and town centre infrastructure 

• Charitable rate relief 

• Council-owned property, assets and maintenance (non-council house) 

• Large-scale development projects 

• Shop front designs and funding 

• Street furniture 

• Street parking permits 

• Town centre developments and partnerships 

• Budget monitoring 

• Review of outturn 

• Fees and charges 

• Budget setting 

• Medium term financial planning and national funding proposals 

• Performance reporting 

• Data protection policy 

• Customer access strategy 
 

100


	Agenda
	4 Action notes of the meeting held on 23 February 2021
	5 Updates from previous meeting
	6 Outturn Position Report 2020/21
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G
	Appendix H
	Appendix I

	7 Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2022/23
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	9 Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2020/21
	Appendix 1

	10 Work Programme 2021 - 2022

